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TUSCOLA COUNTY
CONTROLLER/ADMINISTRATOR'’S OFFICE

Michael R. Hoagland 207 E. Grant Street Telephone

Controllerf/Administrator Caro, Michigan 48723 988-672-3700
mhoagland@tuscolacounty.org

May 31, 2001

Tuscola County Board of Commissioners and
Citizens of Tuscola County, Michigan:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Tuscola County,
Michigan for calendar year ended December 31, 2000, is hereby submitted as
required by state statutes. Tuscola County is annually required by statute to
issue a report on its financial position and activity. This report was prepared by
the County Controller's Office and audited by an independent fim of certified
public accountants. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data
are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner that presents
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds, account
groups and component units of the government. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of Tuscola County's activities have
been included.

The CAFR is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical.
The introductory section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of transmittal; an
organizational chart and a list of Tuscola County's principal elected and
appointed officials. The financial section includes the general-purpose financial
statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules, as well as the independent auditor’s report on these
financial statements and schedules. The statistical section, which is unaudited,
includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on
a muiti-year basis.

Tuscola County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with
the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to this single audit, including a
schedule of federal financial assistance and the independent auditor's reports on

internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, is included
in the CAFR.



The financial reporting entity includes all the funds and account groups of the
primary government (i.e. Tuscola County as legally defined), as well as all of its
component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the
primary government is financially accountable. The government provides a full
range of services including police protection, courts, drainage systems, jail
operations, health services, vital records, mosquito control, housing
rehabilitation, animal control, economic development, dispatch/311, friend of the
court, recycling, social services, veterans counseling, senior citizen programs;
the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and infrastructure;
recreational activities and cultural events.

Blended components units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of the primary government. Accordingly, the financial statements of the
Tuscola County Building Authority have been consolidated with the County's
related debt service and capital project funds as required by the Statement on
Michigan Governmental Accounting and Auditing #2. Discretely presented
components units are reported in a separate column in the combined financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary
government and to differentiate their financial position, results of operations and
cash flows from those of the primary govemment. The Road Commission and
Drain Commission are reported as discretely presented component units.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

County government is the largest unit of local government in Michigan and is also
the oldest political subdivision of the state, having attained stature and
importance before any other form of govermment now in existence.

Tuscola County was incorporated in 1851. Since the late 1960’s, the County
Govemment has operated under a seven member elected County Board of
Commissioners. Members are elected by Districts that are established every 10
years through an apportionment process. This process establishes equal
population districts. Members serve a term of two years. (See attached County
organizational chart).

The County Board of Commissioners is responsible, among other things, for
adoption of balanced annual operational and capital improvement budgets,
determining tax levies, property equalization among local governmental units,
establishing certain policies, appointing members to various boards and
commissions, and appointing certain County officials.

In 1986 the Board of Commissioners established an appointed County
Controller/Administrator position to be the Chief Administrative/Accounting
Officer of the County. The duties of this position involve the management of the
Recycling operation, Information Systems Department, Human Resources
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Department, Payroll Department, Accounting/Budgeting Department and
responsibility for other statutory functions of the position.

The offices of Prosecuting Attorney, Sheriff, Clerk, Treasurer, Register of Deeds,
and Drain Commissioner are elected at large and serve for a four- year term.

The Judicial branch of government consists of three judges with one each in
Circuit Court, District Court, and Family/Probate Court. All judges are elected at
large and serve a six-year term.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The 2000 population census identified the population of Tuscola County to be
58,266. This represents an increase of 2,768 residents, or 5.0 percent, from the
1990 census. The unemployment rate for Tuscola County in the year 2000 was
3.1 percent, which indicates a decline of 2 percent compared to 1999. The
median age for a resident of Tuscola County in the year 2000 was 35 years old.

Ethanol

An application is currently being reviewed by the Michigan Economic
Development Corporation and the Michigan Department of Agriculture for the
Vassar Township Agricultural Processing Renaissance Zone for a proposed
ethanol processing plant. This tax free zone would be in place for 15 years and
assist in providing economic growth for the region. The Renaissance Zone
designation and favorable public vote (referendum vote to be held in June of
2001) regarding a required zoning change would enable Michigan Ethano! LLC to
be developed. The agricultural processing enterprise would create approximately
35 jobs and generate annual sales in the range of $50 million dollars. The
building and personal property is expected to have a value of approximately $55
million dollars.

General Cable

General Cable Industries, Inc. has developed plans to cease wire and cable
production at its facility located in the County of Tuscola. The Comporation plans
to eliminate jobs and cease all production no later than July 16, 2001. Tuscola
County EDC will have an active part in marketing the sale of the building with the
intention that the building will not become vacant for an extended period of time.

Michigan Sugar

A letter of intent has been signed between the Great Lakes Sugar Beet
Cooperative and Michigan Sugar for the cooperative to purchase four thumb-
area beet processing plants including the cne located in Caro. This is anticipated
to be completed by the bankruptcy court in September of 2001. Michigan Sugar,
as proposed in the letter of intent, will continue to market the cooperative's
products. The Tuscola County Economic Development Corporation may be able
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to assist the new cooperative in obtaining financing for the purchase of the
existing plants.

Alfalfa Plant
The owners of the Alfalfa Plant have determined that the use of this facility will be
for the packaging and storage of the products produced at other facilities.

Economic Infrastructure Support Systems

One of the primary roles of the County related to economic development has
been to maintain and upgrade the road, bridge, drainage, solid waste, housing,
airport and other infrastructure support systems. The following is a surmmary of
the support system activities during 2000.

Drainage

Maintaining the large drainage systern of the County is integral to the economy
and especially to agriculture. Without the extensive drainage system significant
amounts of agricultural land would be unproductive. Tuscola County has more
than 550 drains to be maintained. In the year 2000 over 2 million dollars was
spent in the County on drainage projects. The County's share of this cost was
approximately $479,000. For the past several years, County drainage costs have
been increasing. Significant amounts of the drainage work are financed over
time. As of December 31, 2000, there were approximately 13 million dollars in
outstanding drain bonds or notes.

Airport

Improvements continue to be made to the Tuscola Area Airport. In the year 2000,
the Airport Authority received notification of a grant award in the amount of
$620,000 from the Michigan Aeronautics Commission. Funding will provide for a
partial taxiway, apron, vehicle parking, and an enirance road from M-81. it is
anticipated that this project will be completed in August of 2001. Improving air
transportation remains an important element of the overall Tuscola County
economic development strategy.

Roads/Bridges

During the year 2000, the Tuscola County Road Commission resurfaced 84 miles
of County primary roads and 104 miles of local roads with a combined cost of
approximately 6 million dollars. Also integral to the transportation system, the
Road Commission spent approximately 1.2 million dollars on bridges and
culverts for the primary and local road systems. Significant resurfacing work to
the State Trunk Line System scheduled in Tuscola County for 2001 by the
Michigan Department of Transportation includes 14.8 miles of M-25 from the
Tuscola-Bay County Line easterly to the Village of Unionville as well as 8 miles of
M-15 from the Vassar City limits southerly to the Millington Village limits.
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Recycling/Solid Waste

The success of the County’s recycling program has put the County at a decision-
making crossroads. In order to accommodate the growing amount of recycling
material and accomplish other recycling goais, a consultant was hired in 2000 to
review alternate solutions to the needs of the recycling operation. Surveys of the
public and public officials have shown needs and goals to include: illegal
dumping enforcement, recycling education, household hazardous waste
programs, used tire drop-off, business recycling opportunities, expansion of
recycling drop-off centers, and expansion of the current recycling center. At the
end of 2000, the Solid Waste Planning Committee was reviewing the funding
needs of the operation through a fee assigned to each household under P.A.138
of 1986.

New Economic Development Initiatives

Renaissance Zone Designations

In 2000 the Tuscola County Board of Commissioners in conjunction with the
State of Michigan designated the Caro and Cass City Industrial Parks as tax-free
Renaissance Zones through December of 2009. The Renaissance Zone
designation allows most property taxes at the local and County level to be waived
over a multi-year period. This is intended to be a tool to encourage
manufacturing firms to locate in these industrial parks.

Countywide Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

In 2000 Tuscola County implemented a Brownfield Redevelopment Authority.
The purpose of this Authority is to encourage the development of abandoned,
undeveloped, or under utilized property (called a brownfield) because of
environmental contamination. Increases in taxable value as a result of
improvements made to these properties can be captured for a certain period of
time to repay the costs of making the original improvements. Also, taxable value
increases can be captured for up to five years after project completion to create a
revolving loan fund for new projects. Ultimately, these properties are put back on
the tax rolls.

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES
County Facility Upgrades

Significant capital investments have recently been made to upgrade and maintain
the viability of County facilities.

Courthouse
Approximately 1.13 million dollars was spent for new heating and cooling
systems in the Courthouse, Annex, and Sheriff Buildings. These heating/cooling



systems were 30 or more years old and on the verge of becoming completely
non-functional. Annex building and Magistrate office remodeling work will begin
in early 2001. Work was started in late 2000 and will continue into 2001 to
complete Courthouse barrier-free compliance. Barrier-free compliance is
anticipated to cost approximately $382,000 with one of the major costs involving
elevator installation.

Security System

A state of the art security sysiem with metal detectors and X-ray machines has
been implemented in the Courthouse. Equipment and remodeling costs for the
security system were approximately $190,000. Annual operating costs are in
excess of $80,000 for police officer staffing of the security system.

Office Space Planning

The deficiency of office space to efficiently conduct operations prompted the
Board of Commissioners to approve an architectural study to review altermnative
solutions to the office space problems. The County Board of Commissioners has
started a capital projects fund to build reserves to solve office space deficiency
and related space problems on a “pay as you go” type of plan. The Board has
commissioned an architectural firm to develop specifications to construct a
13,000 square foot building connected to the current Courthouse by a vestibule
to house District Court and Prosecutor operations.

Medical Care Facility

The County Medical Care Facility has major building space deficiencies and is
unable to efficiently accommodate the resident population. A millage question to
expand and upgrade the facility failed in 1988, but it is anticipated that a new
millage question may be asked in 2001 or 2002.

County Computer Technology Investments

Tuscola has advanced in the effective use of computer technology. Virtually all
County operations utilize computers for daily operations, but the need for new
and advanced software continues. Departments strive to fully utilize computer
technology in order to keep pace with new office demands. Departmental
efficiency studies conducted by independent auditing firms have explained the
need for increased compulterization, emphasizing the need for optical imaging
technologies. In the year 2000, planning and implementation of computer
technology continued for many County operations.

Optical Imaging
The County is reviewing methods of financing and implementing optical imaging.

In other counties, the use of optical imaging has normally been implemented in
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the Register of Deeds and County Clerk offices first. Eventually optical imaging
would be used in many other departments. The state is debating a bill that would
change fees generated in the Register of Deeds office to provide funds for
County technology needs. Provision of fee or other new revenue source is vital in
order to implement optical technology.

Computer Aided Dispatch

The County's current computer aided dispatch software system is out-of-date
and needs o be replaced soon because of the vital functions of the Dispatch
Operation. The County Dispatch Director has been reviewing software/hardware
systems that will accomplish computer aided dispatch needs of the department. It
is anticipated that a substantial investment will be required to meet these needs.
Costs are estimated in the range of $250,000 to $300,000 and couid be lease-
purchased over several years. The County has applied for grant assistance to
purchase the system. Implementation of a new system will likely begin in 2001.

Sheriff Department

The Sheriff Department made significant strides in accomplishing automation
goals for the department over the past few years. Federal and State grants,
along with a County commitment to match these grants have enabled the
purchase of a vastly improved records management software system. The
Justice Records Management software makes the imporiant police records
database in the Sheriff Department available to laptop computers in patrol cars
and local police agencies. Police reports can now be efficiently prepared at the
scene and police agencies have direct access to database information for
investigations. Remaining goals are to link Dispatch and the Court system to the
Sheriff Department database.

Other Computer Systems

Other computer related activities include hardware/software upgrades in the
prosecutor's office; assisting local units of govermment in purchasing
computerized election equipment, and review of potential E-Government
applications in Tuscola County.

Other County Activities

Millage/Surcharge Renewals

In the August 2000 primary election, the public approved renewal of each of the
following millages for 8 years: bridge improvements (4807 mills), primary road
improvements (.9657 mills), and mosquito abatement (.6415 mills). Also of
significance, the public renewed the telephone surcharge for 5 years, which
funds the dispatch operation. The public vote of confidence in these programs
assures funding stability for several years.
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Accounting Department
In 2000, the County Board of Commissioners made a decision to form an

Accounting Department as part of the County Controller's Office. The formation
of this department strengthened the coordination of vital financia! functions such
as budgeting, accounting, payroll, and fringe benefit administration. The
department was formed through the reorganization of staff in the County Clerk
and Treasurer Offices to the Controller's Office.

Labor Negotiations

Union contracts that expired in 2000 which have been settled include: AFSCME
Courthouse, AFSCME Deputies, and Government Employees Labor Council
(Dispatchers). Contracts that expired in 2000 but are not settled as of this writing
include: Michigan Association of Police (Comrections Officers and other Non-
Certified Deputies) and Police Officers Association of Michigan (Certified
Deputies). The Police Officers Labor Council (Sheriff Command Unit) expires in
2001.

Jail Crowding/District Court Probation Department

The District Court Probation Department was restructured as part of the 2000
budgeting process adding a Chief Probation Officer and a new intensive
probation program. This program is anticipated to assist in alleviating a jail-
overcrowding situation by placing appropriate people on intensive probation
rather than in jail.

New State Police Building

Construction of the 7,500 square foot State Police Building was completed in
2000. The County bonded for 1.65 million dollars to construct this facility and will
retire bond payments over 15 years from lease payments made by the State of
Michigan. After the bonds are retired, the State will continue to make certain
payment amounts fo the County for the State Police to remain in this County
facility.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting System

The County's financial statements for the governmental fund types, expendable
fund types, and agency funds have been prepared on the modified accrual basis
of accounting according with generally accepted accounting principles.
Revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available to
finance expenditures of the cumrent period. Expenditures are generally
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund
liability is incurred, provided the liability normally would be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources. The major exception to this general
rule is principal and interest on general long-term debt, which is generally
recognized when due.
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The proprietary funds, the nonexpendable trust fund, and the pension fund of the
component unit are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues are recognized when they are earned with their expenses being
recognized as they are incurred. The proprietary funds, the nonexpendable trust
fund, and the pension fund of the component unit are accounted for on a cost of
services measurement focus. This means that all liabilities (whether current or
non-current) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.
Their reported fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and retained
eamings components. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total assets.

In developing and evaluating the County’s accounting internal controls,
consideration is given to the adequacy of intemal accounting controls.
Accounting controls are comprised of the plan of organization and the
procedures and records that are concerned with the safeguarding of assets and
the reliability of financial records, and consequently is designed to provide
reasonable assurance that:

» Transactions are executed in accordance with management’'s general or
specific authorization.

» Transactions are recorded as necessary (1) to permit preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles or other criteria, such as finance related legal and contractual
compliance requirements applicable to such statements, and (2) to
maintain accountability for assets.

» Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s
authorization.

= The recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing
assets at reasonable intervals, and appropriate action is taken with
respect to any differences.

Budgetary Control

In addition to accounting controls, the County maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of
Commissioners. The County budgets for the general fund, special revenue
funds, and debt service funds on the modified accrual basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles. Budgetary control is exercised at the
fund, activity and line item basis, subject to all County policies regarding the
expenditures of funds and the conditions set forth in the General Appropriations
Act.
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General, Al _Governmental and Expendable Trust Fund Revenues by

Source

The following tables provide a summary of the Counties general and
governmental revenues by source for 2000, and are presented in relation to

December 31, 1999.

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BY SOURCE

1999-2000 | 1999-2000

Revenue and Other 1999 2000 Percent of | Dollar Percent
Financing Sources Amount Amount 2000 Total | Change Change
Taxes $3,620,666 | $3,800,582 | 37.27% $179,916 | 4.97%
Licenses and Permits $441,998 $480,836 481% $48,838 11.05%
Inter-Governmental $2,035,232 | $2,108,672 | 20.68% $73,440 3.61%
Charges for Services $1,640,684 | $1,698,184 | 16.65% $57,500 3.50%
Fines and Forfeits $100,816 $129,057 1.27% $28,241 28.01%
Interest and Rents $277,433 $357,235 3.50% $79,802 28.76%
Reimbursements/Refunds $425,541 $711,485 6.98% $285,944 | 67.20%
Other Revenue —_— —_— —_ —_— —_—
Operating Transfer In $982,845 | $5800,848 8.84% $(81,997) | (8.34)%

Totals $9,525,215 | $10,196,899 | 100.00% $671,684 | 7.10%
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ALL GOVERNMENTAL AND EXPENDABLE
TRUST FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE

1999-2000 | 1999-2000

Revenue and Other 1999 2000 Percent of | Dollar Percent
Financing Sources Amount Amount 2000 Tetal | Change Change
Taxes $5,407,348 | $5,681,758 | 20.58% $274,410 5.07%
Licenses and Permits $596,285 | $646,749 2.34% $50,464 8.46%
Inter-Governmental $5,430,817 | $5,628,771 | 20.40% $197,954 3.65%
Charges for Services $8,738,860 | 39,926,327 | 35.97% $1,187,467 | 13.59%
Fines and Forfeits $157,770 $194,660 0.71% $36,890 23.38%
Interest and Rents $364,174 $502,405 1.82% $138,231 37.96%
Reimbursements/Refunds $477,484 $725,482 263% $247,998 51.94%
Other Revenue $220,471 $373,092 1.35% $152,621 69.22%
Operating Transfer In $3,625,650 | $3,014,043 14.19% $289,293. | 7.98%

Totals $25,018,859 | $27,594,187 | 100.00% $2,575,328 | 10.29%

Property tax is the largest single source of revenue to the General Fund.
In 1999, taxable values of property in Tuscola County increased by 4.79
percent resulting in an increase of tax collections to the General Fund.

Intergovernmental is the second largest category of revenue to the
General Fund. The accounting of ADC incentive revenue was changed to
be receipted into the Friend of the Court Fund. This decrease is offset by
an increase of state revenue sharing which is the second largest single
source of revenue to the General Fund and state court equity payments
resulting in a 3.61 percent increase in this category.

The third largest category of revenue fo the General Fund is the Charges
for Services category. Fees reclassified to the Friend of the Court Fund
from the General Fund along with a decrease in the revenues generated
in the office of the Register of Deeds are offset by the increase of revenue
generated by fees collected in District Court.

An increase of 1.9 percent in the fee charged for building permits along
with a gain in the number of permits issued resulted in an increase of 11
percent to the License and Permit category of the General Fund.

The County Treasurer invested a higher available doliar amount in year

2000, resulting in improved interest rates for the monies invested. The
growth of the Interest and Rent category was 29 percent.
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= Fines and Forfeitures is the smallest category of revenue to the General
Fund. The increase of revenue generated by the County Sheriffs
Department along with an increase in the number of Bonds forfeited
contributed to the gain of 28 percent in this category.

* Refunds and reimbursements can vary from year to year along with the
Miscellaneous or Other Revenue Category. The revenue resulting from a
lawsuit involving the Register of Deeds Office totaled $ 49,000 and is a
one-time source of revenue for the year 2000. Indirect service cost
charged by the General Fund for services to other funds is also recorded
in this category.

= Transfers to the General Fund primarily involve Delinquent Tax Revolving
funds.

The following statements provide a broader analysis of information based on the
General Fund along with all governmental and Expendable Trust Fund revenues.
The result of the comparison reveals an increase of approximately 10 percent
overall (including transfers-in).

= Charges for Services make up 36 percent of all revenue for primary
governmental operations, making this the largest revenue source. The
revenues generated by the Medical Care Facility and the Dispatch Funds
are the two largest sources for this category.

* The second largest category is Taxes, with an increase of 5.07 percent
overall, generated from the increase in taxable values within the County.

» The Intergovernmental category grew by 3.65 percent or $ 197,954
making this the third largest category when all funds are analyzed.

General, All Governmental and Expendable Trust Fund Expenditures by
Function

The following tables present a summary of the County’s general govermnmental
expenditures and other financial uses for the year ending December 31, 2000.
The amounts and percentages of increases and decreases are in relation to
December 31, 1999.
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GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

1999-2000 | 1999-2000

Expenditures and Other 1999 2000 Percent of | Dollar Percent

Financing Uses Amount Amount 2000 Total | Change Change
Legislative $145,713 $118,747 1.17% ($26,966) | (18.51)%
Judicial $1,563,509 | $1,694,120 | 16.64% $130,611 8.35%
General Government $2,447,510 | $2,699,353 | 26.52% $251,843 10.29%
Public Safety $1,481,483 | $1,583,749 | 15.56% $102,266 | 6.90%
Public Works $699,472 $847.584 8.33% $148,112 | 21.17%
Heallh and Welfare $449,258 $440,373 4.33% {$8,885) (1.98)%
Recrealion and Culture —_ e — e —
Other $215,659 $213,891 2.10% ($1,768) {0.82)%
Capital Qullay — — —_ -— -—
Debl Service — R — —-- —_—
Operating Transfers Out $2,210,875 | $2,580,396 | 25.35% $369,521 16.71%

Totals $9,213,479 | $10,178,213 | 100.00% $964,734 10.47%

ALL GOVERNMENTAL AND EXPENDABLE
TRUST FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
1999.2000 | 1999-2000

Expenditures and Other | 1999 2000 Percent of | Dollar Percent

Financing Uses Amount Amount 2000 Tetal | Change Change
Legislative $145,713 $118,747 0.42% ($26,966) | (18.51)%
Judicial $2,486,538 |{ $2,636,042 | 9.35% $149,504 6.01%
General Government $3,120,608 | $3,549,453 | 12.59% $428,845 13.74%
Public Safety $3,337,502 | $3,653,770 | 12.96% $316,268 | 9.48%
Public Works $1,036,928 | $2,130,551 | 7.60% $1,093,622 | 105.47%
Health and Welfare $9,357,896 | $10,040,349 | 35.63% $682,453 7.29%
Recreation and Culture $10,664 $10,104 0.04% (3560) (5.25)%
Other $215,659 $213,891 1.17% $115,846 | 53.72%
Capital Qutlay $1,332,980 | $1,746,790 | 6.20% $413,810 31.04%
Debt Service $962,573 $1,016,085 | 3.60% $53,512 5.56%
Operating Transfers Out $2,648,428 | $2,041,636 | 10.44% $293,208 11.07%

Totals $24,655,490 | $28,057,418 | 100.00% $3,401,928 | 14.27%
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Including transfers out, General Fund expenditures increased by
approximately 10 percent or $ 964,734 from 1999 to 2000.

The 1999 to 2000 decline in legislative expenditures is the result of
changes in the accounting of legal costs. In 1999 these costs were
included in the County Board of Commissioner's budget. Beginning in
2000, these costs were accounted for as a separate General Fund activity.

Judicial costs grew by approximately $130,000 or 8 percent in the General
Fund from 1999 to 2000. Much of this increase occurred in Circuit Court
involving court appointed attomey costs.

The General Fund category of general government grew by approximately
10 percent from 1999 to 2000. Factors in this increase include: 2000 being
an election year with comesponding costs as well as a new activity titled
Legal Services being added into this category in 2000.

The public safety category centers on activites of the Sheriffs
Department. For the General Fund, public safety costs grew by 6.9
percent from 1999 to 2000. It should be noted that courthouse security
was a new cost added to this category beginning in 2000.

A significant increase in the public works category expenditure has
occuired because of substantial increases in drainage system costs. From
1999 to 2000 the General Fund public works expenditures increased by
over 21 percent or $148,112 dollars.

From 1999 to 2000 Health and Welfare expenses actually showed a slight
decline of approximately 2 percent in the General Fund. Veteran burial
costs were slightly down in comparison to the year before.

Operating transfers out of the General Fund grew by 16.7 percent from
1999 to 2000. There are numerous transfers out from the General Fund to
other County funds.

The following statements provide a broader analysis of information based on the
General Fund along with all governmental and Expendable Trust Fund
expenditures. The result of the comparison reveals an increase of approximately
14 percent overall (including transfers-out).

The category of Public Works increased considerably with a major factor
being the construction of the State Police Building.
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= The Capital Outlay category had a 31 percent increase in expenditures.
The Building and Site Fund was used for renovations of County buildings
and also the process for which handicapped accessibility is being
implemented.

Proprietary Operations .

The County Delinquent Tax Intemal Service Fund is significant in meeting the
annual County operational costs and providing a balanced budget. The County
has established a policy to assure the continuation of self-funding the delinquent
tax process. The Health Insurance intemnal Service Fund was established to pay
the premiums that provide coverage to employees of the County.

Fiduciary Funds

The Trust and Agency Fund sets aside monies to be distributed to other units of
government. The Library Penal Fines Fund was established to collect penal
fines and distribute them to various Libraries within the County on a quarterly
basis. The Employee Vacation and Sick Time Fund was established to fulfill the
obligations of the County to pay employees who qualify for payment of earned
sick and vacation time. The Cemetery Trust Fund disburses yearly interest
earnings to specific townships for the care of cemetery lots.

Cash Management

Cash balances are invested according to the Investment Policy adopted by the
Board of Commissioners. The County Treasurer is authorized to invest funds of
the County in accordance with investments permitted by Public Act 20 of 1943 as
amended, MCL 129.91.

Debt

Capital Leases exist for the purchases of a computer data system and the
purchase of phone system upgrades and are both due in monthly installments.
The Health Department entered into a lease with the County for office space.
The Building Authority Debt along with the DPW Bonds for sewer projecis total
$7.,272,000. Under the current state statutes, the County's maximum legal debt
limit is 10 percent of the state equalized value. The County’s debt margin is as
follows:

Debt Limit $ 124,620,343
Debt Margin 117,417,453

The County's gross long term debt was $8,040,023 at December 31, 2000, which
is equivalent to $135.70 per capita.
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Risk Management

The County is exposed to risks of loss related to theft, damage to, and the
destruction of assets; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The County
carries commercial insurance to cover all risk and losses.

Independent Audit

Michigan law requires that an audit of the County’s financial statements be
performed annually. The Tuscola County Board of Commissioners has engaged
Rehmann Robson, Independent Auditors to complete this requirement. The
Independent Audit is included in this report.

Acknowledgement
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Tuscola County Controller's Office. We would like to express our appreciation to
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AMEMBER OF i ASSOCIATES INC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

March 12, 2001

Board of Commissioners
County of Tuscola
Tuscola, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Tuscola County,
Michigan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2000, as listed in the table of contents. These
general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of Tuscola County, Michigan's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Tuscola County
Health Department, which represents 8% of total assets and 11% of total revenues of the Special
Revenue Fund type, and we did not audit the financial statements of the Tuscola County Road
Commission, which represents 15% of total assets and 79% of total revenues of the Discretely
Presented Component Units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the Tuscola County Health Department and the Tuscola County Road Commission, is based on the
reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial position of Tuscola
County, Michigan, as of December 31, 2000, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of
its proprietary fund type and nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 12,
2001, on our consideration of Tuscola County, Michigan’s intemnal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for the purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of Tuscola County,
Michigan. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
general purpose financial statements of Tuscola County, Michigan. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements
and, in our opinion and based on the report of other auditors, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The statistical data listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not part of the general purpose financial statements of Tuscola County, Michigan. Such

information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable
Accountis receivable
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Due from other funds
Due from other component unils
Due from Siaie
Due from other governmental units
Inventory
Prepaid expenditures
Advances to other funds
Advances to component unil
Restricied assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis
Invesiments
Taxes receivable
Property, planl and equipment-net
of accumulated depreciation
Amount available for retirement of
general fong term debt
Amount Lo be provided for retirement
of general long term debt

TOTAL ASSETS

TUSCOLA COUNTY
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPLS,
ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Governmental Fund Types
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
3 7,100 § 2,699,506 % 97,158 § 163,055
486,878 193,492 36,209 785,587
3,967,464 1,968,762 - -
74,771 1,493,597 108 -
- (355,243) - -
757,261 550,889 - 433,000
399,382 295,424 - -
- 22,438 - -
- 16,987 -
610,000 - - -
- 21,675 - -
- 833,662 - -
§ 630285 S 7,737,189 § 133475 § 1,381,642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Tolals Totals

Proprietary Fiduciary (Memorandum (Memorandum
Fund Type Fund Types Account Groups Only) Cnly)
General
Internal Trust and General Long Term Primary Component Reporting
Service Apency Fixed Assels Debt Government Units Entity
$ 3337398 § 1942134 % - 3 - % 8,246,351 & 2,894,059 $ 11,140,410
3,028,641 7,029 - - 4,537,836 4,264,426 8,802,262
2,245,795 - - - 8,182,021 - 8,182,021
- - - - - 11,778,398 11,778,398
6,608 - - - 1,575,084 1,037,174 2,612,258
- - - - (359,243) - (359,243)
- 369,300 - - 2,110,450 - 2,110,450
- - - - - 400,783 400,783
- - - - 694,806 - 694,806
79,621 - - - 102,059 5,700 107,759
- - - - - 322,778 322,778
. . - - 16,987 171,452 188,439
1,817,389 - - - 1,817,389 - 1,817,389
- - - - 610,000 - 610,000
- - - - 21,675 615,751 637,426
- - - - 833,662 - 833,662
- - - - - 1,073,426 1,073,426
- . 13,507,394 - 13,507,394 2,522,530 16,029,924
- - - 133,475 133,475 1,399,414 1,532,889
- - - 7,906,548 7,906,548 11,660,315 19,566,863
5§ 10515452 § 2318463 § 13507394 § 8,040,023 § 49,936494 S 38,146206 § 88,082,700

{Continued)

-3



TUSCOLA COUNTY
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENTS UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Governmental Fund Types
Special Debl Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounls payable s 90,392 % 358,609 $ - $ 2,350
Accrued liabilities 51,663 ElL510 - -
Due to other funds 1,083,124 302,431 - -
Due to other component units . - - -
Due to other governmental wnits 213 - - -
Patient trust fund - 11,317 - -
Bonds and deposits - 57,600 - -
Undistribuied receipis - - - -
Undistributed laxes - - - -
Due 1o employees - - - -
Deferred revenue 3,967,464 2,130,372 - -

Advances from other funds - - -
Advances from primary government - -
Advance - Srate - 3,335 -
Contracts and capital Jeases payable - -
General obligations

bonds and notes - - -
Accrued employee benefils - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,192,856 2,945,174 - 2,350

FUND EQUITY
Investment in general fixed assets - - -
Retained Eamnings
Reserved - - -
Unreserved - - -
Fund Balance

Reserved 610,000 861,438 133,475 1,379,292

Unreserved:
Designated - - -
Undesignated 500,000 3,930,577 -

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,110,000 4,792,015 133,475 1,379,292

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 5§ 6302856 5 7,737,189 § 133,475 $ 1,381,642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemnents.
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Tolals Totals
Propriclary Fiduciary {Memorandum {Memorandum
Fund Type Fund Types Account Groups Only) Only)
General
Internal Trust and General Long Term Primary Component Reporting
Service Agency Fixed Assets Debt Government Unils Enlity
44,121 - - - 495,472 561,188 1,056,660
- 884,100 - - 1,017,273 34,697 1,051,970
757,261 7,804 - - 2,150,620 - 2,150,620
- - - - - 400,783 400,783
- 608,045 - - 608,258 - 608,258
- - - - 11,317 - 11,317
- - - - 57,600 - 57,600
- 114,259 - - 114,259 - 114,259
- 694,350 - - 694,350 . 694,350
- 2,876 - 2,876 - 2,876
- - - - 6,097,836 12,975,574 19,073,410
1,817,389 - - - 1,817,389 - [,817,389
- - - - - 610,000 610,000
- - - - 3,335 152,815 156,150
- - - 64,365 64,363 - 64,365
- - - 7,272,000 7,272,000 13,025,698 20,297,698
- - - 703,658 703,658 34,031 737,689
2,618.771 2,311,434 - 8,040,023 21,110,608 27,794,786 48,905.3%4
- - 13,507,394 - 13,507,394 2,522,530 16,029,924
6,618,426 - - - 6,618,426 - 6,618,426
1,278,255 - - - 1,278,255 - 1,278,255
- 6,800 - - 2,991,005 4,777,732 7,768,737
- - - - - 615,751 615,751
- 229 - - 4,430,806 2,435,407 6,866,213
7,886,681 7,029 13,507,394 - 18,825,886 10,351,420 39,177,306
10,515,452 2,318,463 13,507,394 § 8,040,023 49,936,494 38,146,206 88,082,700

-
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND DISCRETELY
PRESENTED COMPONENTS UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Governmenlal Fund Types

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
REVENUES
Taxes £ 3,800,582 $§ 1,881,176 $ - 8 -
Licenses and permits 490,836 155,913 - -
Intergovernmental
Federal 12,275 760,318 - -
Stale 2,073,747 1,986,578 180,829 -
Local 22,650 141,377 450,997 -
Charges lor services 1,698,184 8,228,143 - -
Fines and forfeils 129,057 65,603 - -
Interest and renls 357,235 78,119 4,245 62,806
Reimbursements and refunds 711,485 13,997 - -
Other - 355.092 - 18,000
TOTAL REVENUES 9,296,051 13,666,316 636,071 80,806
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Legislative 118,747 - - -
Judicial 1,694,120 941,922 - -
General government 2,699,353 850,1C0 - -
Public safety 1,583,749 2,070,021 - -
Public works 847,584 - - 1,282,967
Health and welfare 440,373 9,599,976 - -
Recreational and cultural - 10,104 - -
Other 213,851 - - -
Capital outlay - 1,718,158 - 28,632
Debt service - 33,849 982,236 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,597,817 15,224,130 982.236 1,311,599
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,698,234 (1.557,814) (345,165)  (1,230,793)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds - - - -
Note proceeds - - - -
Operating transfer in 900,848 2,095,669 348,923 471,000
Cperating transfer out (2,580,396) (282,925) - (78,315)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,679,548) 1,812,744 348,923 392,685
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 18,686 254,930 2,758 (838,108)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 1,091,314 4,537,085 130,717 2217400
FUND BALANCE, END} OF YEAR $ 1,110,000 3 4,792,015 5§ 133475 § 1,379,292

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.



Totals Tolals

L.
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Fiduciary {(Memorandum {(Memorandum
Fund Type Only} Only)
Expendable Primary Component Reporting
Trust Government Units Enlity
- 8 5,681,758 § 3,324,337 § 9,006,145
- 646,749 - 546,749
- 772,593 1,211,317 1,983,910
- 4,241,154 6,927,449 11,168,603
- 615,024 2,380,550 2,995,574
- 9,926,327 - 9,926,327
- 194,660 - 194,660
- 502,405 85,856 588,261
- 725,482 - 725,482
- 373.092 141,046 514,138
- 23,679,244 14,070,605 37,749,849
- 118,747 - 118,747
- 2,636,042 - 2,636,042
- 3,549,453 - 3,549,453
- 3,653,770 - 3,653,770
- 2,130,551 10,613,051 12,743,602
- 10,040,349 - 10,040,349
- 10,104 - 10,104
117,614 331,505 - 331,505
- 1,746,790 5,471,957 7,218,747
- 1,016,085 1,591,718 3,007,803
117,614 25,233,396 18,076,726 43,310,122
(117,614) (1,554,152) (4,006,121} (5,560,273
- - 3,205,000 3,205,000
- - 567,000 567,000
08,503 3,914,943 148,834 4,063,777
- (2,941,636} (148,834) 3,090,470y
98,503 973,307 3,772,008 4,745,307
19,111) {580,845) (234,121) (814,966)
19,111 7,995,627 8,063,011 16,058,638
-8 7414782 §  7,528890 § 15,243,672
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

(eneral Fund

Amended
Budget Actual Variance
REYENUES
Taxes 5 3,786,400 § 3,800,582 S 14,182
Licenses and permils 440,662 490,836 50,174
Intergovernmental
Federal 5,000 12,275 7,275
Slate 2,086,669 2,073,747 (12,922}
Local 23,000 22,650 {350)
Charges for services 1,492,200 1,698,184 205,984
Fines and forfeils 87,850 129,057 41,207
Interest and rents 246,033 357,235 111,202
Reimbursemenis and refunds 484,793 711,485 226,692
Qther - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 8,652,607 9,296,051 643,444
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Legislalive 118,747 118,747 -
Judicial 1,717,640 1,694,120 23,520
General govermment 2,774,754 2,699,353 75,401
Public safety 1,674,173 1,583,749 90,424
Public works 855,848 847,584 8,264
Health and welfare 445,746 440,373 5,373
Recreational and cultural - - -
Other 229,546 213,891 15,655
Capital outlay - - -
Debt service - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,816,454 7,597,817 218,637
REVENUES OYER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 836,153 1,698,234 862,081
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfer in 640,830 900,848 260,018
Operating ransfer out (2,600,396) {2,580,396) 20,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,959,566) {1,679,548) 280,018
REYENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (1,123,413) 18,686 1,142,099
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 1,110,000 1,091,314 (18,686}
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 (13,413) $ 1,110,000 §S 1,123,413

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.
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_Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Amended Amended
Budgel Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance

s 1,875,500 § 1,881,176 5676 % - % - -
143,524 155,213 12,389 - - -
082,302 760,318 {221,984) - - -
2,219,224 1,986,578 {232,646) 182,377 180,829 (1,548)
169,744 141,377 (28,367) 433,360 450,997 17,637
7.469,755 8,228,143 758,388 - - -
46,500 65,603 19,103 - - -
21,110 78,119 57,009 1,200 4,245 3,045
27,188 13,997 (13,391 - - -
188,408 355,092 166,684 - - -
13,143,455 13,666,316 522,862 616,937 636,071 19,134
1,000,723 941,922 58,301 - - -
964,423 §50,100 114,323 - - -
2,122,761 2,070,021 52,740 - - -
9,796,548 9,599,976 196,572 - - -
11,460 10,104 1,356 - - -
1,804,853 1,718,158 86,695 - - -
95,283 33,849 61,434 082,312 982,236 76
15,796,051 15,224,130 571,921 982,312 982,236 76
(2,652,597} {1,557,814) 1,094,783 {365375) (346,165) 19,210
1,930,862 2,095,669 164,307 348,923 348,923 -
(371,503} (282,925) 88,578 - - -
1,559,359 1,812,744 253,385 348,923 348,923 -
(1,093,237) 254,930 1,348,167 (16,452) 2,758 19,210
4,567,732 4,537,085 {30,647) 130,717 130,717 -

b 3,474,495 8 4,792,015 1317,520 § 114,265 § 133,475 19,210

-6-



COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

TUSCOLA COUNTY

IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for services
Interest earned on taxes
Interest on investments
Other operaling revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative lces
Scttlements, cloims and benefits
Chher
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Interest on investments

INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS
OPERATING TRANSFERS
Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS
NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE,
BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND
BALANCE, END OF YEAR

The accompanying noles are an intcgral parl of these financial statements.

Propriciary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type
Non- Tolals
Internal Expendable (Memorandum
Service Trust Only)

1,333,185 -3 1,333,185
347,695 - 347,695

- 418 418

33,948 - 33,948
1,714,828 418 1,715,246
1,177,782 - 1,177,782
2,763 - 2,763

1,646 369 2,015
1,182,191 369 1,182,560
532,637 49 532,686
388,856 - 388,896
921,533 49 921,582
507,068 - 507,068
(1,407,916} - (1,407,916)
(500,848) - {900,848)
20,685 19 20,734
7,875,996 6,980 7,882,976
7,896,681 S 7,029 § 7,903,710

7-
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE AND NON-EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operaling income {loss)
Adjustmenls 1o reconcile operating income
{loss) 10 nct cash provided by {uscd in) operaling acrivilics
Interest reporied as operating income
{Increasc) docrease in current asscls
Taxes receivables
Accounts reccivables
Due from other governmental unils
Increse {decreasc) in current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due lo other funds
Due to other goyemmental unils

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances 10 other funds
Advances from other funds
Opcraling transfer in
Opcraling transfer oul

NET CASH (USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOAVWS FROM INVESTING ACTYIVITIES
Loans receivable
Salc of investments

Purchase of investments
Interest received

NET CASH FPROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE 1IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
RECONCILIATION TO COMBINED BALANCE SIIEET:
Cash and cash equivalents
Nonexpendable Trust Fund
Expendable Trust Fund

Agency Funds

Tolal per Combined Balance Shecl

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type
Non- Totals
Inlemal Expendable {Memorandum
Scrvice Trust OCnly)
532,637 % 19 532,686
- {418) {418)
170,512 - 170,519
70,531 - 70,531
{75,595) - (75,595)
(25,340) - {25,340)
{202,987) - (202,987}
(11,276) - (11.278)
458,489 {36%) 458,120
540,957 - 540,957
{488,251} - (488,251}
507,068 - 507,068
(1.,407,916) - {1.407.916)
(848,142) - (B48.142)
1.636 - 3,636
824,306 - 824,306
- {49) {49)
388,896 418 389314
1,216,838 369 1,217,207
427,185 - B27,185
2.510.213 - 2,510.213
3337398 % - 3337398
[ -
1.942.134
5 1,942,134



TUSCOLA COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Drain Road
Commission Commission Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis 3 2,884,466 § 9501 § 2,894,059
Invesiments 4,264,426 - 4,264 426
Special assessmenis receivable 11,778,198 - 11,778,398
Accounts receivable - 1,037,174 1,037,174
Invenlory - 322,778 322,718
Prepaid cxpenditures - 171,452 171,452
Due from other funds 400,783 - 400,783
Due [rom other governmenlal units 5,700 - 5,700
Fixed assels - 6,587,677 6,587,677
Less: accumulaied depreciation - (4,065,147) {4,065,147)
Resinicled Assets:
Cash - 615,751 615,751
Taxes Receivable - 1,073,426 1,073,426
Amount available for retirement of
general long term debt 1,359,414 - 1,399,414
Amount to be provided for retirement
of general long term debt 11,626,284 34,031 11,660,315
TOTAL ASSETS £ 32,359,471 3 5,786,735 § 38,146,206
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Account payable by 243696 % 317,492 % 561,188
Accrued liabilities - 34,697 34,697
Due 1o other funds 400,783 - 400,783
Deferred revenue 11,902,148 1,073,426 12,975,574
Advance from primary government 610,000 - 610,000
Advance - State of Michigan - 152,815 152,815
Druin bond payable 11,588,250 - 11,588,280
Drain noles payable 1,437,418 - 1,437,418
Accrued employee benefits - 34,031 34,031
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,182,325 1,612,461 27,794,786
FUND EQUITY
Investment in general fixed assels - 2,522,530 2,522,530
Fund balance
Reserved for debl service 1,399,414 - 1,399,414
Reserved for drain projects 4,771,132 - 4,777,732
Unreserved
Designated [or bridge/road construction - 615,751 615,751
Undesignated - 1,035,993 1,035,993
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 6,177,146 4,174,274 10,351,420
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY s 32359471 8§ 5,786,735 S 38,146,206

The accompanying notes are an intcgral part of these [inoncial stalements,



TUSCOLA COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
: CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
¢l ALL DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENTS UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

A
Drain Road
Commission Commission Totals
REVENUES
Taxes b 2,258,358 % 1,066,029 § 3,324,387
. Intergovemmental
» Federal 335,430 875,887 1,211,317
State 102,674 6,824,775 6,927,449
Local 301,568 2,078,982 2,380,550
Interest and rents 24,434 61,372 85,856
Other - 141,046 141,046
TOTAL REVENUES 3,022,514 11,048,091 14,070,605
EXPENDITURES
Public works 360 10,612,191 10,613,051
Capital outlay 5,170,245 301,712 5,471,957
Debt service 1,991,718 - 1,991,718
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,162,523 10,913,903 18,076,726
. REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {4,140,309) 134,188 {4,006,121)
i
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
i Bond proceeds 3,205,000 - 3,205,000
Note proceeds 567,000 - 567,000
Operating transfers in 148,834 - 148,834
QOperaling transfers out (148,834) - (148,834)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3,772,000 - 3,772,000
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (368,309) 134,188 (234,121)
: FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,545,455 1,517,556 8,063,011
H
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 6,177,146 § 1,651,744 & 7,828,890

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ihese financial slatements.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Tuscola County (the “County”), conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of
the significant policies:

REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying financial statements are for the reporting entity of Tuscola County, and
include the financial data of the component units of the County, as required by generally
accepted accounting principles. The component units discussed below are considered to be
part of the County’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or
financial relationship with the County.

Following 1s a description of the component units of the County, which have been included
in the accompanying financial statements.

Blended Component Unit

Building Authority — The financial statements of the Tuscola County Building Authority
have been consolidated with the County’s related debt service and capital project funds as the
component unit provides services entirely to the pnmary government.

Discrete Component Units

Road Commission - The County Board of Commissioners appoints the governing board of
the Road Commission, and the Road Commission deposits money with the County
Treasurer. The County has the ability to significantly influence operations of the Road
Commission. A complete financial statement can be obtained from the Tuscola County Road
Commission, 1733 Mertz Road, Caro, Michigan 48723.

Drain Commission — The Drain Commission is considered a discrete component unit as the
nature and significance of the relationship between the primary government and the
Commission 1s such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. Each of the drainage districts established pursuant to the Drain
Code of 1956 are separate legal entities, with the power to contract, to sue and be sued, to
hold, manage and dispose of real and personal property, etc. The statutory drainage board of
Chapter 21 drainage districts consists of the State Director of Agriculture and the Drain
Commissioner of each county involved in the project. The County Drain Commissioner has
sole responsibility to administer the drainage districts established pursuant to Chapters 3, 4

-11-



TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and 8 of the Drain Code. The Drainage Board or Drain Commissioner, on behalf of the
drainage districts, may issue debt and levy special assessments authorized by the Drain Code
without the prior approval of the County Board of Commissioners. The full faith and credit
of the County may be given for the debt of the drainage district. A complete financial
statement may be obtained from the Tuscola County Drain Commissioner, 440 N. State St.,
Caro, Michigan 48723.

Other Year Ends

Health Department — The financial statements of the Health Department are prepared on a
September 30 fiscal year.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund and account
group are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, habilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.
Govermnment resources are allocated to and accounted for in the individual funds based upon
the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into
fund types, bread fund categories and account groups as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is

used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted forin
another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and
related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities
{other than those financed by Lthe Proprietary Fund).

-12-
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPRIETARY FUND:

Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds are used to account for the financing
of goods or services provided by the County to other departments and funds, or to
other governmental units on a cost reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS:

Trust and Agency Funds - Trust and Agency funds are used to account for assets
held by the County in a trustee or agency capacity for individuals, private
organizations, other governmentals and/or other funds. These include agency funds,
an expendable trust fund and a nonexpendable trust fund

ACCOUNT GROUPS:

General Fixed Asset Account Group — This account group is used to account for the
County’s fixed assets (other than those accounted for in the Proprietary Funds).

General Long Term Debt Account Group - This account group is used to account
for all long-term obligations of the County (except those accounted for in the
Proprietary Funds).

TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns does not
present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized

in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. The basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

-13-



TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All governmental funds, the expendable trust fund, and agency funds are accounted for using
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Significant revenues
susceptible to accrual include property taxes, reimbursement type grants and charges for
services.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when
the related fund liability is incurred provided the liability normally would be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources. The major exception to this general rule is
principal and interest on general long-term debt, which is generally recognized when due.

All governmental funds and the expendable trust fund are accounted for on a spending or
"current financial resources” measurement focus. This means that generally only current
assets and current liabilities are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance
(net current assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable resources".

Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable
resources” during a period.

The proprietary funds and the nonexpendable trust fund are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses
are recognized when they are incurred.

The proprietary funds and the nonexpendable trust fund are accounted for on a cost of
services or "economic resources” measurement focus. This means that all liabilities (whether
current or non-current) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.
Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained
earnings components. Propnietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in total assets.

BUDGETARY DATA

The County budgeted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds
on the modified accrual basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Budgetary control is exercised at the line item level by activity in the General,
Special Revenue, and Debt Service funds. Any revisions to the adopted budget (i.e. budget
amendments) require approval by the Board of Commissioners.

-14-
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A separate budgelary report is prepared which demonstrates compliance at the legal level of
control and is available from the County Controller’s Accounting Office. Budgeted amounts
are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board of Commissioners. Individual budget
amendments that were material relative to the original adopted budget were made during the
year in various funds. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end.

ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is not employed by the County, because it is at present considered not
necessary lo assure effective budgetary control or to facilitate effective cash planning and
control.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents include cash, certificates of deposit, mutual
funds, and short-term investments with maturity periods of less than three months.

INVESTMENTS
Investments are stated at fair value.
RECEIVABLES

All receivables are reported at their gross value. Where appropriate, the estimated portion
that is expected to be uncollectible 1s represented as an allowance for doubtful accounts.

PREPAID ITEMS

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods are recorded as
prepaid items.

SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due
from other funds" or "due to other funds” on the balance sheet. Funds which have a deficit
equity in the County's pooled cash account, have this deficit presented as an amount due to
other funds.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund receivables are reported as advances. In
governmental fund types, these advances are included in reserved fund balance, which
indicates that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and therefore
are not available for appropnation.

INVENTORY

Inventory of the Road Commission component unit is stated on the basis of average cost. The
costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased
rather than when consumed.

FIXED ASSETS

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-term liabilities
associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus.

Fixed assets used in government fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted for
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental funds. Public
domain (“infrastructure™) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters,
streets, sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems and similar assets that are immovable
and of value only to the County of Tuscola and the Road Commission have been historically
excluded from the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the Road Commission’s general
fixed assets. Fixed assets are stated at cost, except for general fixed assets for which an
original cost could not be obtained which are recorded at estimated original cost. Donated
fixed assets are valued at their fair market value on the date donated. No depreciation has
been provided on the general fixed assets, except for the Tuscola County Road Commission.

The Tuscola County Road Commission uses the sum-of-the-years’-digits method for
computing depreciation on road equipment and the straight-line method for all other fixed
assets.

In accordance with State Act 51 reporting requirements, the Road Commission’s
depreciation expenditure is charged to the various categories of expenditures within the Road
Commission Operating Fund. The corresponding addition to accumulated depreciation is
credited against current year expenditures. This has no effect upon total expenditures, as it is
a memorandum transaction only and, accordingly, expenditures continue to be reported in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED REVENUE

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, amounts that are measurable but not
available to pay liabilities of the current penod are classified as deferred revenues. Material
deferred revenues in governmmental funds represent property taxes and special assessments
that will be received in subsequent years and grant money received that has not been properly
matched with expenditures.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term debi is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when
resources have been accumulated in the Debt Service Fund for payment early in the
following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed
from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a
governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations 1s reported in the general long
term debt account group. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund
operations are accounted for in those funds.

FUND EQUITY

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriate for expenditure or legally
segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for
future use of financial resources.

PROPERTY TAXES

Real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenue in the year for which they are
levied. Deferred revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have been met, but for
which revenue recognition have not been met. The County has included $3,929,991 in
deferred revenue in the general fund and $1,949,379 in the special revenue funds for property
taxes, which were levied on December 1, 2000, to fund operations for the year ending
December 31, 2001.

GRANTS AND OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs. All other federal

reimbursement type grants are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when
the related expenditures/expenses are incurred.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PENSION PLANS

The provision for pension cost is recorded on accrual basis. The County funds pension costs
as they accrue in accordance with actuarial requirements.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of normal operations, the County has numerous transactions between
funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets,
and service debt. The accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions
as operating transfers, except as noted below. Operating subsidies are also recorded as
operating transfers. The amounts recorded as subsidies, advances, or equity contributions are
determined by County management.

Internal service funds are used to record charges for services to all County departments and
funds and are recorded as operating revenue. All affected County funds record these
payments to the Internal Service Funds as operating expenditures or expenses.

The general fund provides administrative services to various funds. Amounts charged to the
other funds for these services are based on the County's cost allocation plan and are treated as
miscellaneous revenue in the general fund and as operating expenses in the other funds.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

County employees are granted vacation and sick pay in varying amounts based on length of
service and union contracts. Vacation days are accrued annually upon the employment
anniversary date and must be taken during the year in which the vacation days are accrued.

Employees may accumulate sick leave until termination of employment, up to a maximum of
900 hours. Employees who retire are compensated for 100 percent of their total accumulated
sick leave if they have at least 20 years of service at retirement. Employees who retire with
at least 10 years but less than 20 years of service are compensated for 50 percent of their
accumulated sick leave. All other employees who terminate are compensated for 25 percent
of their accumulated sick leave.

The current portion of any compensated absence liability can not be reasonably estimated,
therefore no accrual for any estimate of the current portion of the liability has been provided
in the applicable funds. The entire amount of the liability has been recorded in the general
long-term debt group of accounts.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENT 20

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 20, the
County has elected not to apply the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989 to its proprietary fund.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
During the year ended December 31, 2000, the County carried commercial insurance to cover
all risk of losses. The Worker’s Compensation insurance is the only retrospectively rated
policy; any premiums accrued are based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the
County. The County has had no settled claims resulting from these risks that exceeded their
commercial coverage in the past three fiscal years.

VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL PROVISIONS

Michigan Public Act 621 of 1978 as amended, requires that a local unit shall not incur
expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated. During 2000, the County incurred
expenditures in certain budgeted funds, which were in excess of the appropriated amounts, as
follows:

Unfavorable
Budget Actual Variance
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Health Department $1,817,907 $1,825796 §$ (7,889
Medical Care Facility 6,449,085 6,658,291 (209,206)

During the year ended, December 31, 2000, the General Fund and the Computer Tech Grant
and Probate Child Care Special Revenue Funds had budgets, including amendments, which
resulted in expenditures in excess of revenues and surplus fund balances. As a result, the
General Fund and the Computer Tech Grant and Probate Child Care Special Revenue Funds
have budgeted projected deficit fund balances for the fiscal year.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The County maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by essentially all
County funds. The portion of this pool attributable to each separate fund type is shown on
the combined balance sheet as “Cash and Cash Equivalents™. In addition, various interest
bearing savings and checking accounts, certificates of deposit and investments are separately
held by several of the County’s funds.

Financial Siatements Total:

Primary Government:

20-

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,246,351
Investments 4,537.836
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 21,675
Invesiments 833.662
13.639.524
Component Units:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,894 059
Investments 4264426
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 615,751
7.774.236
$21.413,760
Primary Component
Footnote Government Units Total
Deposits $ 9,537,666 $5,487,924  §15,025,590
Investments 4,101,858 2,286,312 6,388,170
Total $13,639.524 $7,774236  $21,413,760



TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amount and bank balance of the County's deposits were classified
as to risk as follows:

Carrying Bank

Amount Balance
Insured $ 574,841 $ 608,514
Uninsured - uncollateralized 8.962.825 10.625.591

3 9,537,666 $11.234,105

At year-end, the carrying amount and bank balance of the component unit’s deposits were
classified as to risk as follows:

Carrying Bank

Amount Balance
Insured $ 233403 $ 233,403
Uninsured - uncollateralized 5.254.521 5.570,745

$ 5487924  §.5,804,148

Investments

In May of 1998 the County Board of Commissioners adopled a comprehensive investment
policy describing the types of investments in which the County Treasurer may invest.
Management believes that the guidelines of this policy are in accordance with State of
Michigan statutory guidelines as disclosed below.

Statutes authorize the County to invest in the following:

e Bonds and other direct obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of
the United States.

e Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a
bank which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corp. or a Savings and Loan
Association which is 2 member of the Federal Savings & Loan Insurance Corporation, or
a Credit Union which is insured by the National Credit Union Administration.

e Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the 2 highest classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services.

e In United States government or federal agency obligation repurchase agreements.

» In bankers acceptance of United States banks.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¢ In mutual funds composed of investments which are legal for direct investments by local
units of government in Michigan.

The County's investments are categonized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed
by the enlity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered, or
for which the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by ils
trust department or agent but not in the County's name. The securities held by the County are
reported at fair value.

The County's investments are in accordance with statutory authority as follows:

Category Fair
1 2 3 Yalue
Government securities $ 1,490,245 $ - $ - $ 1,490,245
Commercial paper 737,205 - - 737.205
$ 2,227,450 $ - § - 2,227,450
Uncategorized as to risk:
Municipal/government investment trust 348,839
Mutual funds 1.525.569
Total investments $ 4101858
The Component Unit’s investments are in accordance with statutory authority as follows:
Category Fair
1 2 3 Value
Uncategorized as to risk:
Municipal/government investment trust 3 7,943
Mutual funds 2.278.369
$ 2286312

The County's and component unit’s investments in mutual funds are not categorized
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the County did not hold any derivative
financial instruments.
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PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of December 1. The County
levies property taxes on December 1 to fund operations for the following year; such taxes are
due without penalty on or before February 14, with the final collection date of February 28,
before they are added 1o the County's delinquent tax rolls.

FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

Balance Balance
1/1/00 Additions Deletions 12/31/00

Land $ 590810 3 - $ - % 590,810
Buildings and

improvements 6,276,973 2,739,270 - 9,016,243
Equipment 2,715,947 119,663 - 2,835,610
Vehicles 966,008 98.723 - 1.064.731
Total $10,549,738 $2,957,656 ) - $13,507.394

The following is a summary of changes in the fixed assets of the Health Department for the
year ended September 30, 2000, which are included at full value in the changes in general
fixed assets of the County noted above.

Balance Balance
10/1/99 Additions Deletions 9/30/00

Health Department

Fixed Assets $ 584,861 3§ 10,153 $ - $ 595,014
Less: Health Department

Accumulated Depreciation _ (396,708) (453.068)
Net Health Department $ 188,153 $ 141,946
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A summary of the changes in general fixed assets of the Road Commission component unit
are as follows:
Balance Balance
1/1/00 Additions Deletions 12/31/00

General Fixed Assets

Land and improvements $ 81,925 % - 3 - 5 81,925
Buildings 2,098,982 21,417 - 2,120,399
Equipment — roads 4,322,273 243,661 (754,891) 3,811,043
Equipment — shop 128,819 5,335 - 134,154
Equipment — heating 78,298 - - 78,298
Equipment — radio 96,078 12,559 - 108,637
Equipment — office 105,526 10,205 - 115,731
Equipment — engineer 40,117 8,536 - 48,653
Depletable assets 82,738 - - 82,738
Weightmaster equipment 6.099 - - 6.099

7,040,855 $ 301713 $(754,891) 6,587,677
Less accumulated

depreciation and depletion _4,263.244 3 553,526 $(751,623) 4.065.147

Plant and equipment equity 32,777,611 $ 2,522,530

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

MERS

Plan Description. The General County, Medical Care Facility, Health Department, and Road
Commission defined benefit pension plans provide retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
County, Medical Care Facility, Health Department, and Road Commission participate in the
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan (MERS), an agent multiple-
employer plan administered by the MERS Retirement Board. Act No. 427 of the Public Acts
of 1984, as amended, establishes and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in
MERS. The Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for MERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees
Retirement System of Michigan, 447 N. Canal Road, Lansing, Michigan 48917 or by calling
(800) 767-6377.
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Funding Policy. The County, Medical Care Facility, Health Department, and Road
Commission are required to contribute at actuarially determined rates; the current rates are
2%-13% of annual covered payroll. Employees are required to contribute 0%-10% of their
annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of the County, Medical Care Facility,
Health Department, and Road Commission are established and may be amended by the
Retirement Board of MERS. The contribution requirements of plan members are established
and may be amended by the County, Medical Care Facility, Health Department, and Road
Commission Boards depending on the MERS contribution program adopted by the
appropriate Board.

Annual Pension Cost. For the year ended December 31, 2000, the annual pension cost of
$118,948 for the County, $21,873 for the Medical Care Facility, $38,151 for the Health
Department, and $89,784 for the Road Commission for MERS was equal to the required and
actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31,
1999, actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuaral
assumptions included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of
8.0%, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5% per year compounded annually, attributable to
inflation, and (c) additional projected salary increases of 0.0% to 4.16% per year, depending
on age, attributable to senionty/merit. The actuarial value of MERS assets was determined
on the basis of a valuation method that assumes the fund earns the expected rate of return,
and includes an adjustment to reflect market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at December 31, 1999, the date of the latest actuanal
valuation, was 30 years.

General County Plan
Three-Year Trend Information
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/98 $164,584 100% $0
12/31/99 284,730 100 0

12/31/00 118,948 100 0
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued  Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered  Percenlage of
Valuation Assetls -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-3) _(a {c) {(b-a)/c)

12/31/97 $10286,635 $9,973,025 § (313,610) 103% $4,216,652 (7.4)%
12/31/98 11,567,984 10,911,496  (656,488) 106 4,798,561  (13.7)
12/31/99 13,285,840 11,585,794  (1,700,045) 115 4,991,091 (34.1)

Medical Care Facility Plan

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Oblipation
12/31/98 $42 493 100% $0
12/31/99 30,285 100 0
12/31/00 21,873 100 0

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued  Unfunded UAALasa
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroli
Date (a) (b) (b-a) _(a/b) {c) {(b-a)Y/c)

12/31/97  $5,220,321 $4,408,340 § (811,981) 118%  $2,592,233 (31.3)%
12/31/98 5,813,345 4,603,358  (1,209,986) 126 2,942,877 (41.1)
12/31/99 6,606,930 4,844,156  (1,762,774) 136 3,107,696  (56.7)
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Health Department Plan

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
: 9/30/98 $38,765 100% $0
9/30/99 37,697 100 0
1 9/30/00 38,151 100 0

Road Commission Plan

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/98 $§ n/a n/a % 20
12/31/99 83,976 100 0
12/31/00 89,784 100 0

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Acmarial Accrued  Unfunded UAALasa
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered  Percentage of
Valuation Assets -Eniry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {(a) [{12)] {b-a) _{a/b) (c) ((b-a)c)
12/31/97 $ n/a $ na § nfa n/a% 3 n/a n/a%
12/31/98 806,211 1,517,444 711,233  53.1 606,153 1173
12/31/99 993,733 1,543,617 549,884  64.4 614,710  89.5
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Road Commission Massachusetts Mutual Plan

Plan Description. The Road Commission defined benefit pension plan provides retirement
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. The Road Commission provides a single-employer plan administered by
the Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company (Massachusetts Mutual Plan). The Board
of County Road Commissioners establishes and amends the benefit provisions of the
participants. The Massachusetts Mutual Plan issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Tuscola County Road Commission, 1733 Mertz Road, Caro,
Michigan 48723.

Funding Policy. The Road Commission is required to contribute at actuarially determined
rates; the current rates are 13% of annual covered payroll. Employees are required to
contribute $.03 per hour, per month, excluding overtime. The contribution requirements of
the Road Commission are established and may be amended by the Board of County Road
Commissioners. The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be
amended by the Board of County Road Commissioners.

Annual Pension Cost. For the year ended December 31, 2000, the Road Commission’s
annual pension cost of $12,869 for the Massachusetts Mutual Plan was equal to Road
Commission’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined
as part of the Apnl 1, 1999, actvanial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method.
The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of retumn on the investment of present and
future assets of 7.5% and (b) projected salary increases of 4% per year compounded annually,
attributable to inflation. The actuarial value of Massachusetts Mutual Plan assets was
determined on the basis of a valuation method that assumes the fund earns the expected rate
of return, and includes an adjustment to reflect market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis.

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
04/01/97 $ 21,408 100% None
04/01/98 21,465 100 None
04/01/99 12,869 100 None
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued  Unfunded UAALasa
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valualion Assets -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date {2) {b) (b-a) _f{alb) (€} ((b-a)/c)
April 1, 1998 $327,596 3416,739 389,143 78.6%  $1,901,213 4.7%
April 1, 1999 312,204 387,010 74,806 80.7 1,929,731 3.9
April 1, 2000 340,060 429,245 89,185 79.2 1,977,974 4.5

8. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Health Depariment

The Health Department offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all Health
Department employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. The related assets and liabilities are not reported in the Health
Department’s financial statements as the assets are placed with a trustee.

Road Commission

The Road Commission offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all salaried
employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until the employee’s termination,
retirement, death or unforesecable emergency. The related assets and liabilities are not
reported in the Health Department’s financial statements as the assets are placed with a
trustee.
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CAPITAL LEASES

Capital lease for purchase of computer data system, due in
monthly installments of $1,475, including interest at
approximately 7% through July 2003. $ 46,744

Capital lease for purchase of phone system upgrade, due in

monthly installments of $430, including interest of 6.8%,
through February 2004. 17.621

3 64,365

Details of the minimum lease payment requirements for the above capital leases are as
follows:

Health Department Capital Leases:

Fiscal Year
Ending Prncipal
9/30/01 § 22,860
9/30/02 22,860
9/30/03 19,910
9/30/04 2.150
67,780
Less: amounts representing interest (3.415)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 64365
OPERATING LEASES

The Health Department has entered into an operating lease with the County of Tuscola for
office space. The lease provides for monthly payments to the County to partially finance the
County Building Authonty’s debt service requirement on bonds issued to finance
construction of the Health Department Building. The total rental expense under this
operating lease for the year ended September 30, 2000 was $76,303.
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Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending

9/30/01
9/30/02
9/30/03

Principal

$ 77,433

77,433
19,359

$ 174225

The Health Department leases vehicles under non-cancelable operating leases. The total cost
for such leases was $280 for the year ended September 30, 2000. There are no future
minimum lease payments remaining.

11. LONG-TERM DEBT

General obligation bonds and other long-term debt are summarized as follows:

Amount
Issue of Issue

Interest  Maturity  Balance
Rates Dates 1/1/00

Primary Government
Building Authority:
Tuscola County Building
Authority Series 1989-1 £ 650,000

Tuscola County Building

Series 1996 2,200,000
Tuscola County Building

Authority Series 1987 1,200,000
Tuscola County Building

Authority Series 1999 1,615,000

DPW Bonds:

Akron-Fairgrove Sewage

Disposal System 1,370,000
Caro Area Sanilary

Sewer System 1,995,000

Mayville Stormn Sewer System 1,350,000
Richville Storin Sewer System 1,280,000

Total bonds payable

6.00%-7.00% 10/89-10/01 $ 150,000
4.00%4.75% 11/96-11/06 1,650,000
4,75%-720% 5/87-5/02 295,000

5.10%-5.125% 3/01-3/15 1,615,000

6.60%-6.70% 11/78-11/02 195,000

5.20%6.625% 5/92-3/13 1,470,000
5.00%-5.125% 4/97-4/36 1,315,000
4.60%-7.60% 5/98-11/17 _1.160.000

Additions Balance
(Deductions) 12/31/00
$ (70,0000 & 80,000

(200,000) 1,450,000

(95,000} 200,000

- 1,615,000

(65,000) 130,000

(75,000) 1,395,000

(13,000) 1,302,000

(60,000) _1,100,0C0

7.850.000 (378.000) 7,272,000
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Amount  Interest Maturity Balance Additions Balance
Issue of Issue Rates Dates 1/1/00 (Deductions)  12/31/00
Capital Leases:
Health Department Leases
Phone system upgrade  § 25,787 6.80% 3/99-2/04 § 22779 § (5,158) § 17,621
Computer data sysiem 73,911 7.00% 8/98-7/03 60,532 (13,788) 46,744
Total Capitlal Leases 83311 (18,946) 64,365
Tolal Long-Ternm Debt 7.933.311 (596,946) _7.336,365
Accrued Compensated Absences
County accrued compensated
absences 718,426 (86,082) 632,344
Health Department accrued
compensated absences 64,990 6,324 71314
Total accrued compensated absences 783,416 (79,758) 703,658
Total Primary Government 8,716,727 (676,704) _8.040.023
Drain Commission
Special Assessments Bonds Payable
Northwest $6,730,000 4.00%-6.00% 6/00-6/19 6,730,000  (300,000) 6,430,000
Sounthgate 1,170,000 4.75%-5.10% 12/96-6/06 875,000  (125,000) 750,000
5.0. 515,000 4.60%-5.10% 6/97-6/07 410,000 (50,000) 360,000
Sucker Creek 915,000 4.10%-5.00% 6/97-6/07 825,000 (75,000) 750,000
Alder Creek 1,490,000 4.75%-5.30% 6/00-6/15 - 1,450,000 1,490,000
Shebeon I/C 93,280 5.10%-5.50% 6/00-6/10 - 93,280 93,280
State and Colling 1,715,000 4.30%-4.70% 10/00-6/10 - _1.715.000 1,715,000
Total bonds payable 8.840,000 _2.748.230 11,538,280
Notes Payable
Section 434 Notes
under the Drain Code varies 3.75%-6.50% 6/94-9/08 _1,780.786 567,000
(910.368) _1437418
Total Drain Commission 10,620,786 _2.404.912 13.025.698
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The Drain Commission was involved in several intercounty drain projects which are being
accounted for by one of the other participating counties. As a result, when the Section 434
Notes were issued the Drain Commission did not receive any of the proceeds but they are
liable for their share of the debt service on those notes and have appropriately recorded those
liabilities as a part of long-term debt. The Drain Commission’s portion of the proceeds from
the issuance of Section 434 Notes on intercounty drains accounted for by other counties
during the year ended December 31, 2000, is $93,280.

Amount  Interest Malurity Balance Additions Balance
Issue of Issue Rates Datles 1/1/00 (Deductions) 12/31/00
Road Commission
Accrued compensated absences § 32699 8§ _ 1332 5 34031
Total Component Units 10,653,485 2406244 13,059,729
Total General Long-Term Debt
Primary Government and
Component Units $19,370212 $1,729.540 $21,099,752

Maturities of primary government long-term debt, excluding accrued compensated absences
and including interest of $3,659,691 are as follows:

General
Obligation Capital
Bonds Leases Total
2001 $ 1,057,468 $ 22,860 $ 1,080,328
2002 084,048 22,860 1,006,908
2003 801,138 19,910 821,048
2004 785,220 2,150 787,370
2005 754,815 - 754,815
2006 and thereafter 6,545,587 - 6,545,587
Total $10928276 §$ 67,780  $10.996,056
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Maturities of discrete component unit long-term debt, excluding accrued compensated
absences and including interest of $4,526,491 are as follows:

Special
Assessment Notes

Bonds Payable Total
2001 ¥ 1,354,176 $ 988370 $ 2,342,546
2002 1,349,895 193,754 1,543,649
2003 1,313,015 171,868 1,484,883
2004 1,298,918 70,086 1,369,004
2005 1,280,841 42,100 1,322,941
2006 and thereafier 9.427.508 61,658 9.489.166
Total 3 16,024,353 $1,527.836 $17,552,189

12.  INTERFUND DUE TO AND DUE FROM

The amounts of interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2000, are as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
GENERAL FUND $ 757261 $ 1.083.124
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Local Government Police Contract - 17,219
Friend of the Court 80,397 182,473
Vassar Township Police Contract - 10,037
Building Strong Families - 1,343
Victim Services - 11,441
State Survey Grant - 28,342
Victims of Crime Act Grant - 8,834
Community Corrections Service - 1,610
Child Care 37,483 41,132
Building and site 433.009 -

550.889 302.431

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Capital Projects Reserve 433.000 -
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Combined Revolving Tax

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Trust and Agency

COMPONENT UNITS
Capital Project
i Revolving Drain
Subtotal

Effect of presenting Health Department
Special Revenue Funds as of

September 30, 2000.

TOTAL

13. LONG-TERM ADVANCES

- $ 757261
369,300 7.804

- 400,783

400.783 -
2,511,233 2,551,403
40.170 -

$ 2,551,403 $ 2,551,403

The following is a summary of the long-term advances between funds as of December 31,

2000:

GENERAL FUND
(Advance to Component Unit)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Combined Revolving Tax
1998 Delinquent Tax
1999 Delinquent Tax
2000 Delinquent Tax

COMPONENT UNITS
Drain Revolving
(Advance from Primary Government)

TOTAL

-35.

Advances Advances
To From

$ 610,000 3 -
1,817,389 -
- 403,140
- 1,072,136
- 342.113
1,817,389 1.817.389
hY - § 610.000
2,42 $2,427,389
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14. INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN AND TRANSFERS OUT

Following is a summmary of transfers between funds of the County for 2000. These transfers
are part of the normal budgetary process and are necessary to provide resources in
appropniate funds as designated by the Board of Commissioners.

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Internal Service Funds

Trust And Agency Funds

Discrete Component Units

Subtotal

Effect of presenting Health Department
Special Revenue Funds as of

September 30, 2000.

TOTAL
15. DESIGNATIONS FOR FUND BALANCES

ROAD COMMISSION COMPONENT UNIT:
Designated for bridge/road construction
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Transfers Transfers
_In __Out
$ 900,848 $ 2,580,396
2,095,669 282,925
348,923 -
471,000 78,315
507,068 1,407,916
98,503 -
148.834 148 834
4,570,845 4,498,386
- 72.459
$4,570845  §4.570.845
15,7
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16.

RESERVED FOR FUND BALANCES/RETAINED EARNINGS
The following fund balances/retained earnings have been reserved:

GENERAL FUND
Reserved for advances to component unit

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Health Department (reserved for restricted contributions)
Health Department (reserved for prepaid expenditures)
Medical Care Facility {reserved for restricted contributions)

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Akron-Fairgrove (reserved for debt retirement)
Richville Water System Debt (reserved for debt retirement)
State Police Post Building Authonty (reserved for debt retirement)
F.I.A. Building Authonty (reserved for debt retirement)

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Capital Projects Reserve (reserved for construction)
Health Department Building Authonty (reserved for construction)
F.LA. Building Authority (reserved for construction)
Dispatch Building Construction and Equipment (reserved
for construction)
State Police Post Building Authority (reserved for construction)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
1997 Delinquent Tax (reserved for debt retirement)
1998 Delinquent Tax (reserved for debt retirement)
Combined Revolving Tax
(reserved for debt retirement)
(reserved for self-funding)
{reserved for accrued compensated absences)
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3 610,000

3 431
16,987
844.020

$ 861,438

¥ 20,635
22

78,052
34,766

133,475
$1,247,539
2,702
40,068

39,943
49.040

$1,379,297

3 465,502
117,764

2,402,816

3,000,000
632.344

36,618,426
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
Non-expendable Cemetery Trust Fund
(reserved for cemetery maintenance)

DISCRETE COMPONENT UNITS
Drain Commission (reserved for debt service)
Drain Commission (reserved for drain projects)

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

$ 6800

31,399,414
4,777,732

$6,177,146

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, the County has made corrections to
properly reflect activities related to prior fiscal years. As a result, the fund balances in the
funds affected by the changes were restated to reflect adjustments to prior periods. The

effect of those changes is as follows:

Inlernal
Special Revenue Funds Service
Family Combined
General Friend of Voted Independence Revolving
Fund the Court Mosquito Apency Tax
Beginning Fund Balance $ 1,110,000 $ 6,804 t 108,243 £ 97290 $£6,034,521
Correction of:
1998 receivable from state (4,009) (3,382) - - -
Advance between Funds - - (17,497) - 17,497
Transfer of Revenue
Between Funds (14,677) 14,677 - -
Reclassilication of:
Amounis owed to others - - - (30,445) -
Advance From State - - - 6,000
Beginning Fund Balance —
As Restaled §1.091 $ 18,099 $ 099,746 212,845  §6,052,0]8
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18.

SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, the County becomes a party to various claims and
lawsuits. In the opinion of the Jegal council and County management, the ultimate resolution
of such matters will not have a material effect on the financial position of the County.

* % % #
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 7,100
Investments 486,878
Property tax receivable 3,929,991
Delinquent personal property taxes 37,473
Accounts receivable 74771
Due from other funds 757,261
Due from State 399,382
Advances to component units 610,000
TOTAL ASSETS 3 6,302,856
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Account payable 3 90,392
Accrued liabilities 51,663
Duc to other funds 1,083,124
Due to other governmental units 213
Deferred revenue - property taxes 3,967,464
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,192,856
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for advances 610,000
Unreserved - undesignated 500,000
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,110,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 3 6,302,856




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

TUSCOLA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permils
Intergovernmenial
Federal
Stale
Local
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interesl and rent
Reimbursements and refunds

TOTAL REVYENUES

EXPENDITURES
Legislative
Board of Comumissicners

Taotal Legislative

Judicial
Circuit Courl
District Courl
Magistrate
Jury Commission
Probate Court
Juvenile Division
Adult probation
District Court - probalion

Total Judicial

General Government
Elections
Legal
Counly Clerk
Controller
Equalization
Proseculing Altorncy
Cooperative Reimbursement-Prosecutor

Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable)
Budgel Actual Variance
$ 3,786,400 $ 3,800,582 14,182
440,662 490,836 50,174
5,000 12,275 7,275
2,086,669 2,073,747 (12,922)
23,000 22,650 (350)
1,492,200 1,658,184 205,984
87,850 129,057 41,207
246,033 357,235 111,202
484,793 711,485 226,692
8,652,607 9,296,051 643,444
118,747 118,747 -
118,747 118,747 -
354,719 354,719 -
422,090 400,707 21,383
146,067 146,067 -
4,588 2,986 1,602
426,175 426,175 -
221,128 221,128 -
14,900 14,365 535
127,973 127,973 -
1,717,640 1,694,120 23,520
57,112 36,915 20,197
61,762 61,762 -
297,916 297,916 -
230,151 230,151 -
145,619 145,619 -
354,391 353,743 648
132,429 132,429 -

(Conlinued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Centinued)

General Government - Continued

Register of Deeds
Treasurer

Coopcratlive Extension
Computer operations
Building and grounds
Drain Commission
Soil Conservation
Gypsy Moth
Livestock claims

Total General Government

Public Safety
Courthouse security
Sherifl's depariment
Liquor law enflorcement
Marine safety
Secondary road patrol
Thumb Area Narcotics Group
Planning Commissicn
Plat Board
Emergency services
Animal shelter

Total Public Safety

Public Works
Building codes
Dirain at large

Total Public Works

Henalth and Welfare
Substance abusc
Medical Examiner
Velcran's burial

Econemic Development Corp.

Mental Health Appropriation
Cigarcttc Tax

Total Health and Wellare

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Favorable
Amended {(Unfaverable)

Budgel Acwal Variance
$ 180,096 § 172,497 $ 7,599
213,681 213,681 -
152,599 141,232 11,367
291,520 258,166 33,354
516,974 516,974 -
133,004 133,004 -
5,000 5,000 -
1,500 - 1,500
1,060 264 736
2,774,754 2,699,353 75,401
79,643 63,817 15,826
1,141,319 1,096,550 44,769
6,943 5,267 1,676
26,071 19,285 6,786
116,040 115,778 262
57,484 57,148 336
59,541 45,081 14,460
905 261 644
60,168 59,894 274
126,059 120,668 5,391
1,674,173 1,583,749 90,424
364,732 356,469 8,263
491,116 491,115 1
855,848 847,584 8,264
41,680 41,087 593
27,218 27,218 -
18,000 13,655 4,345
30,000 30,000 -
288,243 288,243 -
40,605 40,170 435
445,746 440,373 5,373

(Conlinued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Other
Insurance and bonds
Other
Total Other
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Operating Lransfers in
Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, ENI} OF YEAR

-43-

Favorable
Amended {(Unfavorable)
Budgct Acual Variance
$ 160,146 § 160,146 % -
69,400 53,745 15,655
229,546 213,891 15,655
7,816,454 7,597.817 218,637
836,153 1,698,234 362,081
640,830 $00,848 260,018
(2,600,396) (2,580,396) 20,000
(1,959,566) (1,679,548) 280,018
(1,123,413) 18,686 1,142,099
1,110,000 1,091,314 (18,686)
5 (13,413 § 1,110,000 S 1,123,413




L
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES

Taxes
Properly taxes
Payment in licu of taxes
Frailer park taxes

Tolal Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Marriage licenses
Building code licenses
Dog licenses
Animal sheller licenses
Distriet court licenses
Qlher

Total Licenses and Permits

Inlergovernmental
Federal
Interstate/Medical Incentive
State criminal alien assislance program
State
Co-op Reimbursement - Prosecutor
Marine salety
Civil defense
Judges
Juvenile officer
State Payment Courts
Sccondary Road Palrol
S8T Incentive
State Income 1axes
Liquor licenses
Single Business tax
Heolel liquor tax
DSS Building Payment
Cigarelle tax

Total Intergovernmental - Federal/State
Local
4-H youth - MSU
Local Coniributions T.N.U.

Total Intergovernmental - Local

TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

{Continued)
-44-

$

3,792,894
2,979
4,709

3,800,582

2,265
437,444
34,670
1,700
11,483
3,274

490,836

1,449
10,826

53,651
13,658
23,459
217,582
27,290
279,836
113,890
800
1,105,106
8,710
47,309
82,174
43,375
56,907

2,086,022

5,000
17,650

22,650



TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Charges for Services

District Count costs 5 431,727
District Court - Probation 136,073
County Clerk costs 73,243
Friend of the Court cosls 35,345
Bond costs 6,235
Fees
District Court
Screening assessment 32,597
Probale Court 54,584
Civil 149,512
Warrant {ees 36,264
Fricnd of the Courl 7,299
Child Care 13,475
Cireuit Court
Court 1,042
Scarches and motion [ccs 18,382
Jury, entry and forensic fecs 10,772
Other 3,512
Animal sheler 2,655
County Clerk
DBA/Co-partnership 6,650
Centified 23,703
Copics 4,552
Other 7,031
Register of Deeds
Transler 108,880
Recordings 146,552
Copies 55,697
Other 407
County Treasurer 59,626
SheriTl 245,473
Building code 233
Other {76)
Sales
Sheriff
Canicen 1,887
Auction 8,282
Other 3.150
Film 8,934
Animal shelter 4,610
Building code inspections 876
Total Charges for Services 1,698,184
{Continucd)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REYENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

M

L}
[

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Fines and Forfeits
District Court

Bond forfeitures g 17,207
Ordinance fines and warrant fees 55,239
County Treasurer 7,432
Sheriff 4,890
DPW 44,289
Total Fines and Forfeits 129057
Interesis and Rents
Interests 275415
Rentals 81,820
Total Interest and Rent 357,235
Other Revenue
Reimbursements and Refunds 711,485
TOTAL REVENUES 9,296,051
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
Revolving Tax 900,848
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES s 10,196,899
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

LEGISLATIVE
Board of Commissioners
Salaries and fringes 5 93,744
Supplics, printing and postage 2,892
Memberships and subscription 7,911
Travel 6,225
Adverlising 2,731
Employee training 5,244
TOTAL LEGISLATIVE 118,747
JUDICIAL
Circuit Court
Salaries and fringes 158,497
Supplies, printing and postage 1,534
Contracled services 306
Court appointed counsel 150,288
Court appointed appeal of right 15,572
Steno transcripts 2,722
Steno appeal transcript 3,693
Jury fees, meals and travel 15,059
Witness fees and travel 1,024
Memberships and subscriptions 630
Visiting judge 3,741
Travel 447
Telephone 1,156
Total Circuit Conrt 354,719
District Court
Salaries and fringes 294,049
Supplies, printing and postage 19,597
Screening assessment 3,145
Court appointed counsel 51,547
Sub Steno service 175
Jury fees, meals and travel 16,719
Witness fees and travel 2,679
Memberships and subscriptions 675
Visiling judge 5,894
Travel 579
Repairs and maintenance 1,965

(Conlinued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

District Court- Continued
Employee training
Books

Total District Court

Magisirate
Salaries and fringes
Supplies, printing and postage
Memberships and subscriptions
Travel
Repair and maintainance
Employee training
Books

Total Magistrate

Jury Commission
Salaries and fringes
Supplies, prinling and poslage
Travel

Tolal Jury Commissien

Probate Court
Salaries and fringes
Supplies, printing and postage
Court appointed counscl
Guardianship services
Steno transcripls
Jury [ees, meals and travel
Witness fees and Lravel
Memberships and subscriptions
Travel
Advenising
Employee training
Repairs and maintainance
Books

Total Probate Court

Juvenile Division
Salaries and [ringes
Supplies, printing and posiage
Memberships and subscription
Travel

TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

{Continued)
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1,630
2,053

400,707

135,785
7,460
580

68

774

427

973

146,067

L
2,035
180

2,986

250,175
6,822
156,024
1,300
2,553
1,962
1,311
1,489
1,843
214
209
1,414
859

426,175

215,817
1,495
279

957



TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Juvenile Division - Conlinued

Repairs and maintenance h) 453
Employce training 2,126
Total Juvenile Division 221,128

Adult Probation

Supplies, printing and postage 4,864
Utilities 3,501
Lcasc payments 6,000
Total Adult Probation 14,365

District Court Probation

Salaries and fringes 125,080
Supplics, printing and postage 1,672
Travel 392
Employee training 829
Total District Court Probation 127,973
TOTAL JUDICIAL 1,694,120
GENERAL GOYERNMENT
Eleclions
Salaries and fringes 2,605
Supplics, printing and postage 34,040
Travel 270
Total Elections 36,915
Legal 61,762
County Clerk
Salaries and fringes 281,941
Supplies, printing and postage 11,757
Memberships and subscription 697
Employee training 2,827
Travel 297
Other 397
Total County Clerk 297,916
Controller
Salaries and fringes 223,721
Supplies, printing and postage 2,629
Memberships and subscription 384
(Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

= Controller - Continued
Healh services 5 270
) Travel 231
Employee training 2916
Total Controller 230,151
Equalizalions
Salarics and fringcs 140,798
Supplies, printing and postage 1,082
; Mecmberships and subscription 713
L Travel 1,884
- Employce training 1,142
T Tolal Equalization 145,619
Proseculing Attorney
Salarics and [ringes 336,894
Supplies, printing and poslage 4,195
Contracted services 53
Steno transcripl 418
Steno appeal 1ranscripl 452
Witness fees and travel 72
Memberships and subscription 1,487
Travel 586
Equipmenl rental 254
Employee training 2,086
Books 7,246
¢ d Total Proseculing Atiorney 353,743

Cooperalive reimbursement - Prosecutor

Salaries and fringes 125,297
Supplics, printing and postage 2,230
Contracled services 1,017
Memberships and subscription 959
Tetephone 675
Travel 544
Employee training 465
Books 1,242
- - Total Cooperative Reimbursement - Prosecutor 132,429
2 Register of Deeds
Salaries and fringes 165,468
Supplics, printing and postage 3,582

(Continued)



TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Register of Deeds - Continued

Memberships and subscription b 395
Travel 1,042
LEmployee training 2,010
Total Register of Deeds 172,497
Treasurer
Salaries and [ringes 189,054
Supplies, printing and postage 21,544
Memberships and subscription 235
Travel 738
Employee training 2110
Total Treasurer 213,681

Cooperative Extension

Salaries and [ringes 97,643
Supplies, printing and postage 8,544
Contractual services 24,304
Membcrships and subscription 339
Travel 4305
Repairs and maintainance 2,703
Employec iraining 3,286
Books 108
TFotal Cooperative Extension 141,232

Computer Operations

Salaries and fringes 102,505
Supplies, printing and postage 14,260
Microfilm contraciual service 11,303
Memberships and subscription 281
Travel 94
Employee training 1,656
Compuler service contracl 111,703
Computer repairs and maintainance 11,574
Compuler contractual 4,790
Total Computer Operations 258,166
Building and Grouznds
Salaries and {ringes 153,684
Supplies, printing and poslage 4,731
(Conlinued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Building and Grounds - Continucd

Unilorms and accessories b 1,755
Gas, oil and grease 7.242
Janitorial supplies 11,378
Janitorial services 66,612
Telephane 59,973
Travel 45
Uilities 153,513
Repairs and mainainance 51,247
Grounds care and maintainance 6,794
Total Building and Grounds 516,974

Dratn Commission

Salaries and fringes 121,572
Supplies, printing and postage 5,273
Memberships and subscription 130
Travel 3,201
Repairs and mainicnance 417
Employce raining 2,411
Total Drain Commission 133,004
Soil Conservation : 5,000

Livestock Claims

Dog damages 264
TOTAL CGENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,699,353
PUBLIC SAFETY

Courthouse Security

Salaries and fringes 61,874

Supplies, printing and postage 143

Laundry - cmployces 345

Repairs and maintenance 209

Employee Iraining 1,246

Telal Courthouse Security 63,817
Sheriil's Department

Salaries and fringes 837,485

Supplies, prinling and posiage 8,918

Food 74,756

Vchicle operating supplies 1,264

Kitchen supplies 1,211

Other supplics 670

{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Sheriff - Continued

Clothing and bedding $ 5,546
Uniforms and accessories 6,561
Gas, oil and grease 4,571
Drugs and prescriplions 11,125
Janilorial supplies 4,357
Contractual services 56,189
Memberships and subscription 1,573
Laundry - employces 4,914
Laundry - inmales 2,916
Heallh services 26,623
Telephone 25,932
Travel 1,084
Adverising (help bids) 919
Insurance and bonds 7,936
Repairs and maintainance 4,889
Equipment renlal 197
Employee training 6,914
Total SherifT's Department 1,096,550

Liguor Law Enforcement
Salaries and fringes 3,267

Marine Safety

Salaries and fringes 11,888
Supplies, printing and postage 432
Uniforms and accessories 369
Qas, oil and grease 742
Equipment maintainance and supplies 349
Insurance 1,133
Repairs and maintainance 902
Rentals 2970
Equipment 500
Total Marine Safety 19,285

Sceondary Road Patrol

Salaries and fringes 94,478
Uniforms and accessories 203
Gas, oil and grease 4,000
Laundry 440
Liability and blanket bond 5,454
Equipment 11,203
Total Secondary Road Patrol 115,778
{Continucd)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

R Thumb Area Narcotics Group
Salaries and fringes
Uniforms and accessories
Insurance

Total Thumb Area Narcotics Group

Planning Commission
Salaries and fringes
Supplies, prinling and postage
Contractual scrvices
Memberships and subseription
Travel

’ 1 Tolal Planning Commission

Emergency Services
Salarics and fringes
Supplies, prinling and postage
Uniforms and accessories
Gas, oil and grease
Memberships and subscription
Laundry - employees
Telephone
Travel
Vehicle Insurance
Rcpairs and maintainance
Employee training

xd Total Emergency Services

o Animal Shelter
Salaries and fringes
Supplics, printing and postage
Food
Unilorms and accesseries
Gas, oil and grease
Janitorial scrvices
Dog handling

TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND

(Continued)
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54,202
300
2,646

57,148

2,531
1,744
33,717
6,405
6384

45,081

48,438
2,563
498
455
253
133
929
140
3,163
2,406
916

59,894

107,921
2,633
989

I
4,268
154
3.900



TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Animal Shelter - Continued

Telephone 5 650
Repairs and maintainance 42
Total Animal Shelter 120,668
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 1,583,749
PUBLIC WORKS
Building Codes
Salaries and fringes 323,766
Supplies, printing and postage 6,711
Uniforms and accessories 1,253
Memberships and subscription 2,486
Telephone 2,182
Travel 8,033
Repairs and mainlenance S0
Employce training 9,276
Refund and rebates 619
Books 1,803
Total Building Codes 356,469
Drains at Large 491,115
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 347,584

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Substance abuse 41,087

Medical Examiner

Salarics and [ringes 6,032
Supplies, printing and posiage 1,175
Body Transporl 2,257
Aulopsies 10,578
Conlractual services 6,576
Employee Training 600
Total Medical Examiner 27,218
Yeterans' Burial 13,655
Economic Development 30,000
Mental Heallh Appropriations 288,243
{Continucd)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Cigarette tax
TOTAL HEALTH AND WELFARE

OTHER
Insurance and bonds
Workmen's compensation
Tax refunds and rehates
Approprialions
Audit
Accounting services

TOTAL OTHER
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
Employee Vacation and Sick Time
Road Patrol
County Parks
Friend of the Court
Health Department
Recycling Grant
Equipment/Capital Improvement
State Survey Grant
Law Library
Computer Tech Phase I1
Family Independence Agency
Child Care - Family Independence Agency
Child Care - Probate
Soldiers' Relicf
Health Building
Medical Examiner
Veterans Counsel
Building and Site

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

5

8

40,170

440,373

155,146
5,000
3,094

14,042
LB,500
17,709

213,891

7,597,817

98,503
206,500
6,000
221,446
291,500
42,000
204,700
6,500
11,500
2,025
10,000
102,000
412,483
12,000
471,000
4,485
44,745
433,009

2,580,396

10,178,213
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes reccivable
Taxes receivable - delinquent
Accounts receivable
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Due from other funds
Due from State
Due from other governmental units
Prepaid expenditures
Restricied cush
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Aceount payable
Accrued labtlities
Due to other funds
Patient trust funds
Deposits payable
Advances - State
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for restricted contributions
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Unreserved
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Road Patrol

Local
Government
Police Contracl

52,522

884,221
10,118

946,861

5 19,423

4,712
14,889

894,339

913,940

32,921

913

32,921

213

946,861

$ 19,423




Friend of the

the Court Family Dispatich/  Health Depariment  Vassar Township
Acl 294 Counseling 911 (F.Y.E 9-30-00) Police Contracl Recyeling
5 - 3 34615 & 100,271 § 395373 % -3 60,080
- . 71 - - -
4,558 569 91,759 115,907 10,852 6,694
80,397 - - - - -
109,712 - 19,366 39,587 - -
- - - 22,438 - -
- - - 16,987 - .
3 194,667 S 35,184 8§ 211,467 § 590,292 § 10,852 8 66,774
5 3,785 § - % 687 § 123,974 § 162 % 1,951
8,409 - 9,657 43,804 607 832
182,473 - - - 10,037 -
- - - 3,335 - -
- - 71 - - -
194,667 - 16,604 171,113 10,806 2,783
- - ; 431 - ;
- - - 16,987 - -
- 35,184 194,863 401,761 46 63,991
- 35,184 194,863 419,179 46 63,991
3 194,667 3 35,184 § 211,467 8 590,252 § 10852 3§ 66,774
(Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

Building
Strong Victim
ASSETS Families Services

Early On
Grant

CDBG Job
Training Grant

Cash and cash equivalents 3 -3 -
Investments - -
Taxes receivable - -
Taxes receivable - delinquent - -
Accounts receivable - -
Allowance for uncollectible accounts - -
Due from other funds - -
Due from Slale 7,585 12,577
Due from other governmental units - -
Prepaid expendilures - -
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents - -

Investments - -

3 480

TOTAL ASSETS b 7,585 % 12,577

954

b 480

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Account payable 5 375§ 294
Accrued liabilities 333 -
Due o other funds 1,343 11,441
Patient trust funds ) - -
Deposits payable - -
Advances - State - -
Deferred revenue - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,051 11,735

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for restricted contributions - -
Reserved for prepaid expenditures - -
Unreserved
Undesignated 5,534 842

954

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 5,534 842

954

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE L) 7,585 8§ 12,577

954

$ 480




Equipment CDBG Victim of

Voled and Capital Housing State Survey Crime Act
Meosquilo Improvement Grant Grant Grant
5 106,003 § 291,233 % - 8 - 3 -
634,412 - - - -
3,434 - - - -
- - - 30,359 8,881
3 743,849 § 291,233 § - % 30359 5 8,881
3 3689 % 3,690 § - 8 - 8 47
1,242 - - - -
- - - 28,342 8,834
617,846 - - - -
042,777 3,650 - 28,342 3,881
101,072 287,543 - 2,017 -
161,072 287,543 - 2,017 -
5 743,849 § 291233 § - ¥ 30,359 § 8,381
(Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000
Community
Criminal Corrections Drug Law
ASSETS Forfeiture Services Enforcement Library
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,973 3 - 3 12,157 & 5,305

Invesiments - - - -
Taxes receivable - - - -
Taxes receivable - delinquent - - - -
Accounts receivable - 3,863 - -
Allowance for uncolleclible accounts - - - .
Duc from other funds - - - -
Due from Stale - - - -
Due from other governmental unils - - - -
Prepaid expenditures - . - - -
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents - - - _

Investments - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 3 1,973 § 3,863 3§ 12,157 § 5,305

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Account payable b} - 3 43 - 4,394
Accrued liabilities - 619 - -
Due to other funds - 1,610 - -

Patient trust funds - - - -
Deposits payable - - - -
Advances - Slate - - - -
Deferred revenue - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES - 2,272 - 4,394

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for resiricted contributions - - - -
Reserved for prepaid expenditures - - - -

Unreserved
Undesignated 1,973 1,591 12,157 211
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,973 1,591 12,157 911

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE b 1,973 % 3,863 § 12,157 § 5,305




Computer Computer

Opcration Water Quality  Tech Grant COPS Mobile Tech
Nite Cap Grant  D.A.R.E. Grant Phase II Data Grant Grant
5 -3 98,782 % 124 8 2,025 3 4,131 %

5 - 3 98,782 8 124 § 2,025 % 4,131 §
5 - 3 643 § 6 8 - 5 - $
- - 80 - -
- - - - 3,098
- 643 86 - 3,098
- 98,139 38 2,025 1,033
- 08,139 38 2,025 1,033
$ - 3 08,782 $ 124 § 2,025 § 4,131 $
{Continued)
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis
Invesiments
Taxes receivable
Taxes receivable - delinquent
Accounts receivable
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Due from other funds
Due from State
Due from other governmental units
Prepaid expenditures
Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Account payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Patient trust funds
Deposits payable
Advances - State
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for restricted contributions
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Unreserved
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TUSCOLA COUNTY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2000
Family
Michigan Justice Child Care Independence  Medical Care
Training F.LA. Agency Facility

3 8955 § 93,250 § 117,083 § 749,372
- - - 193,452

- - - 234,241

- - - 3,721

- - - 1,239,972
- - - (359,243)

- 5,818 17,992 -

- - - 21,675

- - - 833,662

b 8,955 $ 99,068 S 135,075 § 2,916,892
5 382 % - 8 32,201 § 39,005
- - - 11,317

- - 40,000 17,600

- - - 395,994

382 - 72,201 464,006

- - 844,020

8,573 99,068 62,874 1,608,866

8,573 99,068 62,874 2,452,886

8,955 § 99,068 $ 135075 $ 2,916,892

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 3




vd

Probate
Child Care

Soldicrs’
Relief

Velerans'
Trust

Voied Senior
Citizens

Building
and Sile

Totals

674

321

8 95,437

196,505
2,039

5 457,191

433,009

$ 2,699,506
193,492
1,949,379
19,383
1,493,597
(359,243)
550,889
295,424
22,438

16,987

21,675
833,662

) 81,030

674

321

$ 293,981

S 390,200

s 7,737,189

5 39,898

41,132

b 6,940

198,544

5 358,609
81,510
302,431
11,317

57,600

3,335
2,130,372

205,484

2,945,174

674

321

88,497

305,131

344,451
16,987

3,930,577

674

321

88,497

805,131

4,792,015

3 81,030

674

321

b 293,981

8 820,200

g 7,737,189
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Road Patrol
Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable)
REVENUES Budget Acteal Yarance
Taxes 3 851,000 % B49646 3 (1,354)
Licenses and permils - - -
Infergovernmenial
Federal - - -
State 10,346 10,346 -
Local - - -
Charges for services - - -
Fines and forfeits - - -
Inlerest and rent 3,000 5,850 2,850
Reimbursements apd refunds - - -
Other - 20,590 20,590
TOTAL REVENUES 864,346 886,432 22,086
EXPENDITURES
Current
Judicial - - -
General Government - - -
Public Salety 1,013,640 1,015,051 (1,411)
Health and Welfare - - -
Recreational and cultural - - -
Capital outlay 87,601 86,190 1,411
Debl service - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,101,241 1,101,241 -
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {236,895) (214,809 22,086
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating trensfer in 206,500 206,500 -
Operating transfer oul - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 206,500 206,500 -
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (30,395) (8,309) 22,086
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 41,230 41,230 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S 10,833 § 32921 § 22,086




-61-

Parks and Recrealion Counly Disaster
Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfuvorable) Amended {Unfavorable)
Budgct Actual Variance Budget Aclual Variance
L - % - 3 - 3§ - ¥ - 8 -
2,500 2,522 22 - - -
2,500 2,522 22 - - -
11,460 10,104 1,356 - - -
11,460 10,104 1,356 - - -
(8,960) {7,582) 1,378 - - -
6,000 6,000 - - - -
6,000 6,000 - - - -
(2,960) (1,582) 1,378 - - -
9,955 9,955 - 2,692 2,692 -
8 6,995 § 8373 § 1,378 s 2,692 § 2,692 8 -
{Continued)



TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Continucd)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and permils
Inlergovernmenial
Federal
State
Local
Charges for services
Fines and lorfeits
Interest and rent
Reimbursemenis and refunds
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Curreni
Judicial
General Government
Public Safcty
IHeallh and Welfare
Recrealional and cultural

Capilal outlay

Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating {ransfer in
Operaling {ransfer cul

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Local Government Police Conlract
Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable)
Budgel Actual Variance
-8 -8 -
106,453 86,135 (10,318)
106,453 96,135 (10,318)
106,453 97,173 9,280
106,453 97,173 9,280
- (1,038) (1,038)
- {1,038) (1,038)
1,951 1,951 ]
1,951 § 913§ (1,038)




Friend of the Courl Act 294 Family Counseling
Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable) Amended {(Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actal Variance

3 -3 - 8 - 3 - 3 - 8 -

- 50,750 50,750 - - -

315,698 550,748 (264,950) - - -

; - - - - - -

81,000 73,824 (7,176) 6,000 6,135 135

4,500 - {4,500) 11,060 12,177 1,177

5,500 10,604 5,104 - - -

906,698 635,926 (220,772) 17,000 18,312 1,312

962,723 913,924 48,799 20,000 10,509 9,091

. 3,500 4248 (748) - - -

16,023 7,299 8,724 - - -
.

982,246 925471 56,775 20,000 10,909 9,091

' {75,548) (239,545) (163,997) {3,000) 7,403 10,403

141,04% 221,446 80,397 - - -

141,049 221,446 80,397 - - -

- 65,501 (18,099) (83,600) (3,000) 7,403 10,403

| 6,304 18,099 11,295 27,781 27,781 -

5 72,305 § - 8 (72,305) & 24,781 § 35184 § 10,403

{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Dispatch/911
Favorable
Amended (Unlavorable)
REVENUES Budget Aclual Variance
Taxes 3 - ¥ - 8 -
Licenses and permils - -
Inlergovernmental
Federal - - -
State 70,000 67,453 (2,547)
Local - - -
Charges for services 830,000 941,253 111,253
Fines and forfeits - - -
Interest and rent 1,000 3,644 2,644
Reimbursements and refunds - - -
Other 14,400 15,204 804
TOTAL REVENUES 915,400 1,027,554 112,154
EXPENDITURES
Current
Judicial - - -
General Government - - -
Public Safcty 743,047 718,946 24,11
Health and Welfare - - -
Recreational and cultural - - -
Cupital outlay - 3,065 (3,065)
Debl service - _ _
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 743,047 722,011 21,036
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 172,353 305,543 133,190
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 20,000 - {20,000)
Operaling trunsier out {270,608) (270,608) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (250,608) (270,608) (20,000)
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (78,255) 34,935 113,190
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 159,928 159,928 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 81,673 § 194,863 § 113,180




¢4

-

Health Depariment (FYE 9-30-00)

Vassar Township Police Contract

Favorable Favorable
Amended {(Unfavorable) Amended (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Vanance

- 3 -3 - 3 - - -

143,524 155.913 12,389 - - -
507,892 311,731 3,839 - - -
518,357 322,274 3,917 - - -
- - - 54,068 45,242 (8,826)

259,359 281.455 22,096 - - -
76,370 33,398 6,822 - -
1,505,708 1,554.771 49,063 54,068 45,242 {8.826)
- - - 54,068 45,289 8,77%
1,789,195 1,788,013 1,182 - - -
5,852 [4,922 {9,070) - - -
22,860 22,361 {1) - -
1,817,907 1,825,746 (7,889) 54,068 45,289 8,779
(312,19%) (271.025) 41,174 - 47 47
415,098 113,189 (1,509) - - -
415,098 413,189 (1,909) - - -
102,899 142,164 39,265 - @n 47
277,015 277,015 - 93 93 -
379914 § 419179 8§ 39,265 5 93 46 (47
(Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Recycling

Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable)
REVENUES Budget Actual Variance

Taxes 3 - 3 - 3 -
Licenses and permils - - -
Intcrgovernmental

Federal - - -

State - - -

Local - - -
Charges for services 40,530 91,652 51,122
Fines and forfeits - - .
Interest and rent - -
Reimbursements and refunds - - -
Other - 10,484 10,484

TOTAL REVENUES 40,530 102,136 61,606

EXPENDITURES
Current
Judicial - -
General Governmenl 102,537 103,188 (651)
Public Safety - - -
Health and Welfarc - - -
Recreational and cullural - - -
Capital outlay 1,000 349 651
Debt service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 103,537 103,537 -

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (63,007) (1,401) 61,606

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Opcrmating transfer in 42,000 42,000 -
Opcrating transfer out - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 42,000 42,000 -

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OYER
{UNDER)} EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (21,007) 40,599 61,606

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 23,392 23,392 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 2,385 § 63,991 § 1,606




Building Stropg Families Victim Scrvices

Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable)} Amended {Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance Budgel Actual Varjance
b - 3 -3 - 8 - % - §
27,807 27,338 (469) 46,509 43,666 (2,843)
27,807 27,338 (469) 46,509 43,666 (2,843)
- - - 45,09 41,494 3,597
27,807 27,806 1 - - -
- - . 1,418 1,780 (362)
27,807 27,806 1 46,509 43,274 3,235
- {468) (468) - 392 392
- (468) {468) - 392 392
6,002 6,002 - 450 450 -
s 6,002 $ 5534 8§ (d68) § 450 § 842 % 392

(Continued)



TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2800

Early On Grant

Favorable
Amended {Unflavorable)
REVENUES Budget Actual Variance

Taxes b3 - 8 - 8 -
Licenses and permits - - -
Intergovermmental

Federal - . _

State - - -

Local - - -
Charges for scrvices - - -
Fines and forfeis - - -
Interest and rent - - -
Reimbursements and refunds - - -
Other - - -

TOTAL REVENUES - - -

EXPENDITURES

Currenl
Judicial - - -
General Government - - -
Public Salety - - -
Health and Welfare - - -
Recreational and cultural - - -

Capital cutlay - - -

Dcbt service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - -

REVENUES OYER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - -
Operating transfer out - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - -

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OYER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND QTHER USES - - -

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 954 954 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR s 954 S 954 % -




e

CDBG Job Training Grant

Voled Mosquito

Favorable Favorable

Amended {Unfavorable) Amended {Unfavorablc)
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance

- - 5 - % 610,500 3% 611,795 % 1,295

218,040 960 (217,080) - - -

. - - 7.606 7,606 -

- - - 3,000 5,514 2,514

- - - - a30 330

218,040 960 (217,080) 621,106 625,245 4,139

- - - 636,227 592,765 43,462

218,040 950 217,080 - - -

- - - 20,750 18,465 2,285

- - - 56,400 3,689 52,711

218,040 960 217,080 713,377 614,919 98,458

- - - (92,271) 10,326 102,597

- - - (92,271) 10,326 102,597

- - - 108,243 90,746 (17,497)

- - 8 - 8 15972 § 101,072 $ 85,100

{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and permils
Intergovernmental
Federal
Siate
Local
Charges [or services
Fines and forfeils
Interesl and rent
Reimbursements and refunds
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Curreni
Judicial
General Government
Public Safety
Health and Wellare
Recreationat and cultural

Capital outlay

Debl service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operaling lransfer in
Operating lransfer oul
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Equipment and Capilal Improvement

Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable)

Budget Actual Variance
. -3 -
26,621 - (26,621)
11,888 - (11,388)
38,509 - (38,509)
285,873 183,040 102,833
285,873 183,040 102,833
{247.364) (183,040) 64,324
242 812 204,700 (38,112)
242,812 204,700 (38,112)
(4.552) 21,660 26,212
265,883 265,883 -
261,331 § 287543 § 26,212




¢

o

[

CDBG Housing Grant Slate Survey Grant
Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable) Amended (Unlavorable)
Budpet Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
- - 3 - 3 - 3 -3 -
175,000 104,223 (70,777) - - .
- - - 47,159 47,130 29
175,000 104,223 (70,777) 47,159 47,130 {29)
175,000 104,223 70,777 50,659 49,924 735
- - - 3,000 2,470 530
175,000 104,223 70,777 53,659 52,394 1,265
- - - {6,500) (5,264) 1,236
- - - 6,500 6,500 -
- - - 6,500 6,500 -
- - - - 1,236 1,236
- - - 781 731 -
- - 8 - s 781 § 2,017 § 1,236
{Continued)



TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Vicums of Crime Act Grant

Favorable
Amended {(Unlaverable)
REVENUES Budpet Aclual Variance

Taxes 3 - 3 - 3 -
Licenses and permits - - -
Inlergovernmental

Federal 47,501 43,912 {3,589)

State 762 4,351 3,589

Local - - -
Charges for services - - -
Fines and for[eits - - -
Interest and rent - - -
Reimbursements and refunds . - -
Olher - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 48,263 48,263 -

EXPENDITURES

Current
Tudicial - - -
General Government - -
Public Safcty 48,263 48,263 -
Health and Welfare - - -
Recreational and cullural - - -

Capital oullay - - -

Debt service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,263 48,263 -

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENRDITURES - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - -
Operating transfler oul - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - -

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES - - -

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED - - -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR ) - & - § -




Crimina) Forfeiture Comununity Corrections Services

Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable) Amended (Unlavorable)
Budget Actual Variance Budget Aclual Variance
5 3 - 8 -3 -3 -
- - - 43,573 45,161 1,588
- 209 299 - - -
- 299 299 43,573 45,161 1,588
1,674 1,674 43,573 43,572 1
1,674 - 1,674 43,573 43,572 ¥
{1,674) 299 1,973 - 1,589 1,589
(1,674) 299 1,973 - 1,589 1,589
1,674 1,674 - 2 2 -
- § 1,973 § 1,973 s 2 35 1,591 § 1,589
{Continued)



TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Drug Enforcement

Favorable
Amended {Uniavorable)
REVENUES Budgel Actual Variance

Taxes 5 - % - 5 -
Liccnses and permits - - -
Intergovernmental

Federal - - -

State - - .

Local - - -
Charges for services - - -
Fines and lorfcits - 5,847 5,847
Interest and rent - - -
Reimbursements and refunds - - -
Other - - -

TOTAL REVENUES - 5,847 5,847

EXPENDITURES

Current
Judicial - - -
General Government - - -
Public Safety 3,461 1,843 3,618
Hecalth and Welfare - - -
Recreational and culiural - - -

Capital outlay - - -

Debt service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,461 1,843 3,618

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (5,461) 4,004 9,465

- OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - -
Operating (ransfer out - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - -

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (5,461) 4,004 9,465

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 8,153 8,153 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 2,693 3 12,157 % 9,465



Law Library QOperation Nite Cap Grant
Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable) Amecnded {Unfavorablc)
Budget Actuoal Variance Budge Actual Variance
- 5 - 5 - b3 - 3 - % -
- - - 15,006 14,814 (192)
6,500 6,500 - - - -
6,500 6,500 - 15,006 14,814 {192)
18,000 17,089 91t - - -
- - - 15,006 14,814 192
18,000 17,089 o911 15,006 14,814 192
(11,500} {10,589) 911 - - -
11,500 11,500 - - - -
11,500 11,500 - - - -
- 911 911 - - -
- 8 911 % 91t s - § - 5 -
{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Continued)

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permils
Intergovernmental

Federal
State
Local

Charges for services

Fincs and forfeils

Inlerest and rent
Reimbursements and refunds

Other

TOTAL REYENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
Tudicial

General Government
Public Safety

Healih and Wellare
Recreational and cultural

Capital outlay
Debi service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in
Operating transfer oul

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REYENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BAIL ANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR. - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

D.ARE.
Favorable
Amended (Unlavorable)
Budget Actual Variance
$ - - -
40,000 53,256 13,256
- 28,592 28,562
40,000 81,548 41,848
40,486 39,843 643
40,486 39,843 643
(486) 42,005 42,491
(486) 42,005 42,491
56,134 56,134 .
5 55,648 S 98,1392 § 42,491




Water Quality Grant Computer Tech Granl Phase 1T
Favorable Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable) Amended {Unfavorable)
Budgel Actual VYariance Budgel Actual Variance
- 3§ - 8 - 8 - - 3 -
- - . 33,742 - (33,742)
- - - 9,223 - {9,223)
- - - 42,965 - (42,965)
5,096 5,096 - - - -
- - - 44,990 - 44,990
5,096 5,096 - 44,990 - 44,990
(5,096) {5,096) - (2,025) - 2,025
- - - 2,025 2,025 -
- - - 2,025 2,025 -
(5,096) (5,096) - - 2,025 2,025
5,134 5,134 - - - -
8 s 8 S - 8 - 2,025 8§ 2,025

{Continued}
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

COPS Mobile Dala Grant
Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable)
REVENUES Budgel Aclual Variance

Taxes 3 - 3 - 3 -
Licenses and permils - . -
Inlergovernmenial

Federal 33,8069 32,802 (1,067

Slate - - -

Local - - -
Charges for services - - -
Tines and forfeits - - -
Interest and rent - - -
Reimbursements and refunds - - -
Olher - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 33,869 32,802 (1,067)

EXPENDITURES

Current
Judicial - - -
General Govemment - - -
Public Safety - - -
Health and Wellare - - -
Recrealional and cultural - - -

Capital outlay 43,736 43,736 -

Debt service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 43,736 43,736 -

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (9,867) {10,934) (1,067)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - -
Operating transfer out - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - }

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (9,867 (10,934) (1,067)

TFUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 11,967 11,967 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR s 2,100 § 1,033 § (L,067)




Computer Tech Grant Michigan Justice Training
Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable) Amended {Un[avorable)
Budgel Aclual Variance Budget Aclual Variance
3 - 3 - 8 - ) - -3 -
- 15,940 15,240 - - -
- - - 6,400 7,189 789
- 200 200 - - -
- 16,140 16,140 6,400 7,189 789
- - - 6,000 3,733 2,267
. 17,911 17,911 - - - -
L] ’:
17,911 17,911 - 6,000 3,733 2,267
. (17,911) (1,771) 16,140 400 3,456 3,056
. (17,911) (1,771) 16,140 400 3,456 3,056
:1' 1,771 1,771 - 5,117 5,117 -
b (16,140) § - 8 16,140 8 5,517 8573 8§ 3,056
{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Child Care F1A.

Favarable
Amended {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES Budpet Actual Variance

Taxes b} - 5 - -
Licenses and permils - - -
Intergovemmental

Federal - - -

State 102,000 71,280 (30,720)

Lecal - - -
Charges for services 84,000 45,963 (38,037)
Fines and forfeits - - -
Interest and rent - - -
Reimbursements and refunds - - -
Other - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 186,000 117,243 (68,757)

EXPENDITURES

Current
Judicial - - -
General Government - - -
Public Safety - - -
Health and Welfare 288,000 193,246 94,754
Recreational and cultural - - -

Capital cutlay - - -

Debt service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 288,000 193,246 94,754

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (102,000) (76,003) 25,997

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 102,000 102,000 -
Operating transfer out - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 102,000 102,000 -

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OYER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES . - 25,997 25,997

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 73,071 73,071 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 8 73,071 8§ 95,068 3 25,997




Family Independence Agency Medical Care Facility

Favorable Favorable
Amended {Unlavorable) Amended {Unfavorable)

Budget Achual Variance Budget Aclual Variance
5 - 5 -3 - 5 225000 % 228921 § 3,921
: 3]9,49‘; 314,523- (4,97 1-} 2,?4(; 2,74[; :
J : : : 6,136,36& 6,752,22!; 6]5,362-
K : : : 9,] l(-) 52.735- 43,625-
. : : 89,93£ 185,621- 95,635;
319,494 314,523 (4,971) 6,463,148 7,222,245 759,097
334,49‘; 334,49; : 6.230,326- 6,360.83'; (130,51 l-)
) 1 1?,86; 235,137- (16?,27;)
‘i - - - - - -
-2 334,494 334,494 - 6,348,190 6,645,974 {297,784)
{15,000) {19,971} (4,971) 114,958 576,271 461,313
10,000 10,000 - 100,895 12,317 (88,578)
- - - {100,895) {12,317} 88,578
10,000 10,000 - - - -
1 (5,000} (9,271) (4,971) 114,958 576271 461,313
97,290 72,845 {24,445) 1,876,615 1,876,615 -
5 92,290 § 62,874 § (29,416) & L991,573 § 2,452,886 S 461,313

{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Probate Child Care

Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable}
REYENUES Budget Actual Variance

Taxes 3 - 3 - 3 -
Licenses and permits - - -
Intergovemmental

Federal - - -

State 90,000 212,962 122,962

Local - -
Charges for services 30,000 33,111 3,111
Fines and forfeits - - -
Inlerest and reni - - -
Reimbursements and refunds - 1,450 1,490
Other - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 120,000 247,563 127,563

EXPENDITURES

Current
Judicial - - -
Guneral Government - - -
Trublic Safety - -
Heallh and Welfare 665,775 665,775 -
Recreational and cultural - - -

Capital oullay - - -

Debl service - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 665,775 665,775 -

REVYENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (545,775) (418,212} 127,563

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating (ransfer in 412,483 412,483 -
Operating lransfer out - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) 412,483 412,483 -

REVYENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (133,292) (5,72%) 127,563

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR. - AS RESTATED 5,729 5,729 -

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § (127,563 § - 8 127,563




£

1
Soldiers' Reliel Veterans Trusl
Favorable Favarable
Amended {(Unfavorable) Amended (Unfavorable)
Budgel Aclual Yariance Budget Actual Variance
3 - 8 - 5 - 3 -3 - 3 -
: - - - 33,146 34,739 1,593
- - - 2,000 - (2,000
- - - 35,146 34,73% {407)
12,000 11,417 583 35,146 35,146 -
L8 ‘;
12,000 11,417 383 35,146 35,146 -
' (12,000) (11,417) 583 - (407) o7
12,000 12,000 . - .
12,004 12,000 - - - -
: - 583 583 - (407 (407
2 91 91 : 728 728 ]
$ 91 § 674 S 583 8 728§ 321 § {407)
{Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SPECIAL REVYENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Federanl
State
Locul
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Imerest and rent
Reimbursements and refunds
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
Judicial
Genceral Government
Public Safety
Health and Wellare
Recreational and culural

Capital outlay

Dcbt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OYER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in
Opemting transfer out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Voted Senior Citizens

Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Varance
b 189,000 $ 190,814 § 1,814
2,258 2258 -
1,500 6,253 4,753
- 100 100
192,758 199,425 6,667
190,669 177,186 13,483
120,669 177,186 13,483
2,089 22,239 20,150
2,089 22,239 20,150
66,258 66,258 .
s 68,347 8 88,497 S 20,150




Building and Sitc Tolal
Favorable Favoroble
Amended (Unfavorable) Amended (Unlavarable)
Budgcet Actunl Vanonce Budget Actual Vaorance
3 - % - % - S 1875500 § 1,881,176 8§ 5,676
- - - 143,524 155,913 12,389
- - - 982,302 760,318 (221,984)
- - . 2,219,224 1,986,578 (232,646)
- - - 169,744 141,377 (28,367
- - - 7,469,755 8,228,143 758,388
- - - 46,500 65,603 19,103
3,500 4,123 623 21,110 78,119 57,009
- - - 27,388 13,997 (13,391)
- - - 188,408 355,092 166,684
3,500 4,123 623 13,143,455 13,666,316 522,862
- - - 1,000,723 941,922 58,801
- - - 964,423 850,100 114,323
- - - 2,122,761 2,070,021 52,740
- - - 9,796,548 9,599,976 196,572
- - - 11,460 10,104 1,356
1,171,358 1,056,845 114,513 1,804,853 [, 718,158 86,695
- - - 95,283 33,849 61439
1,171,358 1,056,845 114,513 15,796,051 15,224,130 571,921
(1,167,858) (1,052,722} 115,136 (2,652,597) {1,557,814) 1,094,783
200,000 433,009 233,009 1,930,362 2,095,669 164,807
- - - {371,503) (282,925) 88,578
200,000 433,000 233,009 1,559,35% 1,812,744 253,385
(967,858) (619,713) 348,145 (1,093,237} 254,930 1,348,167
1,424,844 1,424,844 - 4,567,732 4,537,085 (30,647
s 456,986 § 805,131 S 348,145 S 3474495 5 4,792,015 S 1,317,520
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Special Revenue Funds

Road Patrol (207) is used to account for revenues received from a County mileage and
the County’s general fund. This is the only countywide 24-hour police service.

Parks and Recreation (208) is used to account for the activities to maintain and improve
the operations of Vanderbilt Part. The revenue sources of this fund are
fees collected for the use of facility and the appropriation from the General Fund.

County Disaster (211) This fund has set aside monies to prepare for a natural or
manmade disaster. There are no regular sources of revenues. An appropriation to
establish this fund was made from the General Fund.

Local Government Police Contract (213) The revenue source for this fund is generated
from the reimbursement from Arbela Township for services provided by the Tuscola
County Sheriff Department for a specific number of hours and for the support in
enforcing township ordinances.

Friend of the Court, Act 294 (215) This fund was established to provide a separate
accounting for the expenditures related to the operations of the Friend of the Court, The
revenue sources for this fund are generated by federal and state grants, The County has
established a base appropration to this fund to comply with criteria established to receive
maximum reimbursements from the federal and state levels. Fees and Charges established

through the court systems also make up revenue used to operate the Friend of the Court at
a efficient level.

Family Counseling (216) Marriage license fees collected by the County are proportioned
into this fund and represent the only revenue source. Expenditures are ordered by the
Judge of Circuit Court to provide counseling to families at his discretion.

Dispatch/911 (218) This fund is established to provide emergency 9-1-1 dispatch services
to all law enforcement, fire and emergency medical services. The revenue sources are
generated from the surcharges on landlines and wireless telephone customers.

Health Department (221) This fund provides for the activities classified as both
environmental and public health operations. Portion of veterans counseling and medical
examiner expenses are administered here. The revenue sources are federal and state,
along with an appropriation coming from the General Fund. Fees collected by the Health
Department for services are a revenue source also.

Vassar Township Police Contract (225) The revenue for this fund is provided by
reimbursement of Vassar Township for services provided by the Tuscola County Sheriff
Department in the support of enforcing township ordinances.




Recyeling (230) This fund was established by a grant provided by the State. The revenue
source was then established to be an appropriation from the General Fund. Current
revenues also include income from the sale of material.

Building Strong Families (235) The Building Strong Families Fund is a state grant that
sets aside monies to educate parents in building stronger families skills.

Vigtim Services (236) The revenue source for this fund is generated by a State Grant
reimbursement. The fund provides services to individuals who are victims of crimes.

Early On Grant (237) The Early on Grant is a state grant that sets aside monies to
educate the community at the early stages of leaming similar to the Building Strong
Families Grant,

CDBG Job Training Grant (238) This grant is a state grant that sets aside revenue for
job training.

Voted Mosquito (240) The revenue source for this fund derives from a county wide
mileage. The revenue is used to reduce the risk of mosquito-borne diseases in Tuscola
County. The goal is also to minimize the nuisance population of mosquitoes whenever
possible.

Equipment and Capital Improvement (244) The revenue source for this fund is an
appropriation from the General Fund. This fund provides for a separate accounting for
all equipment and capital outlay projects.

CDBG Housing Grant (250) The revenue source for this fund is a State Housing Grant.
The Human Development Commission is contracted by Tuscola County to administer the
grant, which provides improvements to homes in the County.

State Survey Grant (252) State grant funds are received every year and a small
appropriation from the General Fund to cover administrative cost makes up the revenue
sources for this fund. The revenues are used to replace section corners within the County
to improve the process of surveying. Expenditures must meet grant requirements to
qualify for reimbursement.

Victim of Crime Act Grant (255) This grant is established to provide services to victims
for various reasons. The revenue source is a state grant reimbursement for qualified
expenditures.

Criminal Forfeiture (263) This fund allows for a separate accounting for monies that have
been confiscated by the County when it has been determined to be used in a criminal act.
The money forfeited allows the Sheriff and Prosecutor to purchase equipment to fight
crime in Tuscola County.



Community Corrections Services (264) State of Michigan, Department of Corrections
grant program which allows an employee to oversee sentenced inmates of the cointy jail
to work as part of their sentence. They provide community service to non-profit
organizations. They also accept contributions that help pay for some expenses.

Drug Enforcement (266) The monies are forfeited from the confiscation of property, cars,
and monies that were determined to be used in a criminal act involving drugs. The
forfeited monies will be used to fight the war against drugs in Tuscola County.

Law Library (269) The revenue source for this fund is the established penal fine amount
of $6,500. Appropriations from the General Fund also create a revenue source. The Law
Books purchased will be located in one central location.

Operation Night Cap Grant (275) The revenue source for this fund is generated from
grant money and a small County match. This fund provides a separate accounting for the
effort to reduce alcohol related crashes and injuries.

DARE (276) The revenue source for this fund is generated by the collections of fees on
all drug and alcohol related crimes through the District Court of the County. The fund
sets aside monies to be used to provide drug education and how to prevent violence to
students of Tuscola County. A full-time sworn officer provides the education.

Water Quality Grant (280) The Water Quality Grant fund was established to account for
the grant money received to implement and study water quality in Tuscola County. This
fund will only continue as long as grant money is available.

Computer Tech Grant Phase Il (281) The revenue source for this fund consists of grant
monies and township reimbursements used to purchase workstations, printers and
monitors, including software for police agencies within Tuscola County.

Cops Mobile Data Grant (283) U.S. Department of Justice Cops More Grant, allocated in
1999 to purchase six laptops for the patrol cars. It allows officers in their cars to run file
checks on people, property and some day will enable officers to type reports in their
vehicles. This grant was funded by 75% federal and 25% match by the County.

Computer Tech Grant (284) This is a technology grant, which has four phases. The
Grant provided hardware and software programs to the Sheriff’s Office and other County
agencies to access our database involving investigations and jail inmate information. The
State Of Michigan, The Office of Drug Control Policy grant provides 75% and the 25%
match is by the County.

Michigan Justice Training (285) This fund was established to provide training to sworn
officers only. The revenue is generated by fees collected by the courts and by the State of
Michigan. Agencies are mandated to provide training from the General Fund each year.




Child Care FIA (288) The revenue sources for this fund are State reimbursements, FIA
Client payments and an appropriation from the County’s General Fund. The dollars are
spent 1o pay foster care cost for neglected or abused children. The reimbursements to
Foster Care Parents are for payments of medical expenses, clothing and other
extraordinary items.

Family Independence Agency (290) The revenue sources for this fund are generated by
the State of Michigan. The General Fund of the County appropriates funds to cover the
cost of board administration and adult hospitalization not covered under other programs
and guardianships. This agency administers programs providing for economic, social and
medical assistance to the disadvantaged residents of Tuscola County.

Medical Care Facility (291) Revenue from Federal and State sources in addition to
charges for services provide the monies to offer medical treatment and 24 hour nursing
care to persons requiring long-term care who meet the requirements of the facility.

Probate Child Care (292) The Probate Court Juvenile Fund provides services to families
of youth involved in the Courts. The revenue sources are State reimbursements,
charges for services and the County General Fund appropriation.

Soldiers Relief (293) The fund was established to provide services to indigent veterans
who may not qualify for Veterans Trust Fund monies. The revenue source for this fund is
an appropriation from the County’s General Fund,

Veterans Trust (294) The fund provides services to veterans and/or dependents that
require assistance with such items as shelter, food, clothing, utility bills, medical care and
other expenses. A Veterans Trust Fund Board is established and reviews all claims,

The revenue source is State Reimbursement.

Voted Senior Citizens (297) A mileage passed by.the voters of Tuscola County provides
the revenue source for this fund. This fund provides services for the senior citizens of
Tuscola County. Examples of some services are flu shots and home delivered and
congregated meals.

Building and Site (36%) The revenue source for this fund is the transfer of net income on
delinquent tax funds that are not set aside for operations and rent on County owned land
used for farming. The fund was established to provide for the capital needs of the County
including but not limited to repair, replacement, demotition and acquisition of County
facilities.




Special Revenue Funds

Road Patrol (207) is used to account for revenues received from a County mileage and
the County’s general fund. This is the only countywide 24-hour police service.

Parks and Recreation (208) is used to account for the activities to maintain and improve
the operations of Vanderbilt Part. The revenue sources of this fund are
fees collected for the use of facility and the appropriation from the General Fund.

County Disaster (211) This fund has set aside monies to prepare for a natural or
manmade disaster. There are no regular sources of revenues. An appropriation to
establish this fund was made from the General Fund.

Local Government Police Contract (213) The revenue source for this fund is generated
from the reimbursement from Arbela Township for services provided by the Tuscola
County Sheriff Department for a specific number of hours and for the support in
enforcing township ordinances.

Friend of the Court, Act 294 (215) This fund was established to provide a separate
accounting for the expenditures related to the operations of the Friend of the Court. The
revenue sources for this fund are generated by federal and state grants. The County has
established a base appropriation to this fund to comply with criteria established to receive
maximum reimbursements from the federal and state levels. Fees and Charges established
through the court systems also make up revenue used to operate the Friend of the Court at
a efficient level.

Family Counseling {(216) Marriage license fees collected by the County are proportioned
into this fund and represent the only revenue source. Expenditures are ordered by the
Judge of Circuit Court to provide counseling to families at his discretion.

Dispatch/911 (218) This fund is established to provide emergency 9-1-1 dispatch services
to all law enforcement, fire and emergency medical services. The revenue sources are
generated from the surcharges on landlines and wireless telephone customers.

Health Department (221) This fund provides for the activities classified as both
environmental and public health operations. Portion of veterans counseling and medical
examiner expenses are administered here. The revenue sources are federal and state,
along with an appropriation coming from the General Fund. Fees collected by the Health
Department for services are a revenue source also.

Vassar Township Police Contract (225) The revenue for this fund is provided by
reimbursement of Vassar Township for services provided by the Tuscola County Sheniff
Department in the support of enforcing township ordinances.







Recycling (230) This fund was established by a grant provided by the State. The revenue
source was then established to be an appropriation from the General Fund, Current
revenues also include income from the sale of material.

Building Strong Families (235) The Building Strong Families Fund is a state grant that
sets aside monies to educate parents in building stronger families skills.

Victim Services (236) The revenue source for this fund is generated by a State Grant
reimbursement. The fund provides services to individuals who are victims of crimes.

Early On Grant (237) The Early on Grant is a state grant that sets aside monies to
educate the community at the early stages of learning similar to the Building Strong
Families Grant.

CDBG Job Training Grant (238) This grant is a state grant that sets aside revenue for
job training.

Voted Mosquito (240) The revenue source for this fund derives from a county wide
mileage. The revenue is used to reduce the risk of mosquito-bome diseases in Tuscola
County. The goal is also to minimize the nuisance population of mosquitoes whenever
possible.

Equipment and Capital Improvement (244) The revenue source for this fund is an
appropriation from the General Fund. This fund provides for a separate accounting for
all equipment and capital outlay projects.

CDBG Housing Grant (250) The revenue source for this fund is a State Housing Grant.
The Human Development Commission is contracted by Tuscola County to administer the
grant, which provides improvements to homes in the County.

State Survey Grant (252) State grant funds are received every year and a small
appropriation from the General Fund to cover administrative cost makes up the revenue
sources for this fund. The revenues are used to replace section corners within the County
to improve the process of surveying. Expenditures must meet grant requirements to
qualify for reimbursement.

Victim of Crime Act Grant (255) This grant is established to provide services to victims
for various reasons. The revenue source is a state grant reimbursement for qualified
expenditures.

Criminal Forfeiture (263) This fund allows for a separate accounting for monies that have
been confiscated by the County when it has been determined to be used in a criminal act.
The money forfeited allows the Sheriff and Prosecutor to purchase equipment to fight
crime in Tuscola County.






Community Corrections Services (264) State of Michigan, Department of Cormrections
grant program which allows an employee to oversee sentenced inmates of the county jail
to work as part of their sentence. They provide community service to non-profit
organizations. They also accept contributions that help pay for some expenses.

Drug Enforcement (266) The monies are forfeited from the confiscation of property, cars,
and monies that were determined to be used in a criminal act involving drugs. The
forfeited monies will be used to fight the war against drugs in Tuscola County.

Law Library (269) The revenue source for this fund is the established penal fine amount
of $6,500. Appropriations from the General Fund also create a revenue source. The Law
Books purchased will be located in one central location.

Operation Night Cap Grant (275) The revenue source for this fund is generated from
grant money and a small County match. This fund provides a separate accounting for the
effort to reduce aicohol related crashes and injuries.

DARE (276) The revenue source for this fund is generated by the collections of fees on
all drug and alcohol related crimes through the District Court of the County. The fund
sets aside monies to be used to provide drug education and how to prevent violence to
students of Tuscola County. A full-time sworn officer provides the education.

Water Quality Grant (280) The Water Quality Grant fund was established to account for
the grant money received to implement and study water quality in Tuscola County. This
fund will only continue as long as grant money is available.

Computer Tech Grant Phase 1l (281) The revenue source for this fund consists of grant
monies and township reimbursements used to purchase workstations, printers and
monitors, including software for police agencies within Tuscola County.

Cops Mobile Data Grant (283) U.S. Department of Justice Cops More Grant, allocated in
1999 to purchase six laptops for the patrol cars. It allows officers in their cars to run file
checks on people, property and some day will enable officers to type reports in their
vehicles. This grant was funded by 75% federal and 25% match by the County.

Computer Tech Grant (284) This is a technology grant, which has four phases. The
Grant provided hardware and software programs to the Sheriff’s Office and other County
agencies to access our database involving investigations and jail inmate information. The
State Of Michigan, The Office of Drug Control Policy grant provides 75% and the 25%
match is by the County.

Michigan Justice Training (285) This fund was established to provide training to sworn
officers only. The revenue is generated by fees collected by the courts and by the State of
Michigan. Agencies are mandated to provide training from the General Fund each year.






Child Care F1A (288) The revenue sources for this fund are State reimbursements, FIA
Client payments and an appropriation from the County’s General Fund. The dollars are
spent to pay foster care cost for neglected or abused children. The reimbursements to
Foster Care Parents are for payments of medical expenses, clothing and other
extraordinary items.

Family Independence Agency (290) The revenue sources for this fund are generated by
the State of Michigan. The General Fund of the County appropriates funds to cover the
cost of board administration and adult hospitalization not covered under other programs
and guardianships. This agency administers programs providing for economic, social and
medical assistance to the disadvantaged residents of Tuscola County.

Medical Care Facility (291) Revenue from Federal and State sources in addition to
charges for services provide the monies to offer medical treatment and 24 hour nursing
care to persons requiring long-term care who meet the requirements of the facility.

Probate Child Care (292) The Probate Court Juvenile Fund provides services to families
of youth involved in the Courts. The revenue sources are State reimbursements,
charges for services and the County General Fund appropriation.

Soldiers Relief (293) The fund was established to provide services to indigent veterans
who may not qualify for Veterans Trust Fund monies. The revenue source for this fund is
an appropriation from the County’s General Fund.

Veterans Trust (294) The fund provides services to veterans and/or dependents that
require assistance with such items as shelter, food, clothing, utility bills, medical care and
other expenses. A Veterans Trust Fund Board is established and reviews all claims.

The revenue source is State Reimbursement.

Voted Senior Citizens (297) A mileage passed by.the voters of Tuscola County provides
the revenue source for this fund. This fund provides services for the senior citizens of
Tuscola County. Examples of some services are flu shots and home delivered and
congregated meals.

Building and Site (369) The revenue source for this fund is the transfer of net income on
delinquent tax funds that are not set aside for operations and rent on County owned land
used for farming. The fund was established to provide for the capital needs of the County
including but not limited to repair, replacement, demolition and acquisition of County
facilities.







DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment
of general long-term debt principal, interest, and costs.

Sewage Systems General Obligation Bonds

Akron Fairgrove Sewage Disposal (372)
Caro Sewage Disposal (377)

Mayville Storm Sewer (379)

Richville Water System (380)

Building Authority Bonds

Health Department Building Authority (367)
Dispatch Building and Equipment (378)
State Police Post Building (381)

FIA (Social Service) Building (395)






v




TUSCOLA COUNTY

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000
Akron-
Fairgrove Caro Mayville Richville
Sewage Sewage Storm ‘Water
Disposal Disposal Sewer System
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 7,226 % - $ 22
Investments 13,409 - -
AccountS receivable - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 20,635 $ - 3 22
FUND BALANCE
Reserved for debt retirement £ 20,635 § - 5 22




ed

|

e

Health
Department Dispatch
Building Building and State Police FILA
Authority Eguipment Post Building Building Total
78,052 § 11,858 % 97,158
- 22,300 36,209
- 108 108
78,052 % 34,766 8 133,475
78,052 $ 34,766 § 133,475
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES
Intergovemmental
State
Local
Interest and rent

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating transfer in

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Akron-Fairgrove
Sewage Disposal
Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance
3 - 3 - 3 -
60,739 78,391 17,652
- 623 623
60,739 79,014 18,275
65,000 63,000 -
13,391 13,391 -
78,391 78,391 -
(17,652) 623 18,275
(17,652) 623 18,275
20,012 20,012 -
3 2,360 $ 20,635 $ 18,275




LR

o

Caro Sewage Disposal Mayville Storm Sewer
Favorable Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable) Amended (Unfavorable)
Budpet Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
- § - 8 - ¥ - - § -
168,856 168,856 - 78,750 78,750 -
168,856 168,856 - 78,750 78,750 -
75,000 75,000 - 13,000 13,000 -
93,856 93,856 - 65,750 65,750 -
168,856 168,856 - 78,750 78,750 -
- 8 - 3 - 8 - - % -

(Continucd)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
State
Local
Interest and rent

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating transfer in

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Richville Water System

Favorable
Amended {Unfavorable)
Budget Acitual Variancc
- 5 - % -
125,015 125,000 (15}
- 22 22
125,015 125,022 7
60,000 60,000 -
65,015 65,015 -
125,015 125,015 -
- 7 7
- 7 7
15 15 -
15 § 22 % 7




R

Health Department Dispatch Building
Building Authority and Equipment
Favorable Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable) Amended (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
- § - 8 - % -3 - 8 -
70,000 70,000 - 237,229 200,000 37,229
8,315 8,315 - 33,379 70,608 (37,229)
78,315 78,315 - 270,608 270,608 -
(78,315) (78,315) - (270,608) (270,608) -
78,315 78,315 - 270,608 270,608 -
- % - $ - § - ¥ - 8 -
(Continued)
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - AMENDED BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Concluded)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
State
Local
Interest and rent

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating transfer in

REVENUES AND OTHER SQURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

State Police Post Building

Favorable

Amended (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance

A 69,104 $ 67,556 & (1,548)

- 2,140 2,140

69,104 69,696 592

69,104 69,028 76

69,104 69,028 76

- 668 668

- 668 668

77,384 77,384 -

$ 77,384 $ 78,052 % 668




F.1.A, Building Total

Favorable Favorable
Amended (Unfavorable) Amended (Unfavorable)
Budpget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
$ 113,273 § 113,273 § - 3 182,377 % 180,829 % (1,548)
- - - 433 360 450,997 17,637
1,200 1,460 260 1,200 4,245 3,045
114,473 114,733 260 616,937 636,071 19,134
95,000 95,000 - 615,229 578,000 37,229
18,273 18,273 - 367,083 404,236 (37,153)
113,273 113,273 - 982,312 982,236 76
1,200 1,460 260 (365,375) (346,165) 19,210
- - - 348,923 348 923 -
1,200 1,460 260 (16,452) 2,758 19,210
33,306 33,306 - 130,717 130,717 -
) 34,506 3 34,766 $ 260 §$ 114,265 § 133475 $ 19,210
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital project funds are used to account for the accumuiation of resources, often through
the issuance of long-term debt, for the purposes of constructing capital assets.

Sewage Disposal

Akron Fairgrove Sewage Disposal (472)
Mayville Storm Sewer (480)
Richville (481)

Building Authority

Health Department Building Authority Construction (467)
FIA Building Authority Construction (469)

Jail Construction (478)

Dispatch Building Construction and Equipment (479)
State Police Post Building Authonty (482)

Capital Projects Reserve (403) This fund is related to revenues accumulated for future
capital projects.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents
Investments
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for construction

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Sewage Disposal Sysiem

Akron- Capital Projects

Fairgrove Mayville Richville Reserve
-8 -8 $ 49,952
- - 764,587
- - 433,000
- 8 -8 3 1,247,539
- f - 5 b -
- - 1,247,539
- 8 - 8 3 1,247,539




oD

Health Dept. F.LA. Building Dispatch Building  State Police
Building Authority Authority Jail Construction Post Building
Construction Construciion Construction  and Equipment Authority Total
$ 2,702 % 21,418 $ 39,943 49,040 163,055
- 21,000 - - 785,587
- - - - 433,000
5 2,702 8 42,418 s 39.943 49,040 1,381,642
5 - 3 2,350 5 - - 2,350
2,702 40,068 39,943 49,040 1,379,292
) 2,702 % 42,418 ) 39,943 49,040 1,381,642

-78-



TUSCOLA COUNTY

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REVENUES
Inlerest and rent
Other

TOTAL REYENUES

EXPENDITURES
Consullanis
Conslruction
Miscellancous
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Operating transfer in

Operating transfer out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OYER
{(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Sewage Disposal Syslem

Akron- Capilal Projects
Fairgrove Mayville Richville Reserve

331 -8 (200 $ 45,300

331 - 20) 45,300
17,986 - - -
17,986 - - -
(17,655) - (20) 45,300

- - - 471,000
- - - (78,315)

- - - 392,685

(17,655) . (20) 437,985
17,655 - 20 809,554

5 - 8

1,247,539




LR

Health Dept. F.LA. Building Dispalch Building  State Police
Building Autherity  Authorily Jail Construction  Post Building
Constnuction Construction  Construction  and Equipment Authority Total
b 33 % 1,104 3 - 3 - 3 16,058 3 62,806
- 18,000 - - - 18,000
33 19,104 - - 16,058 80,806
- - - - 172,645 172,645
. . - - 1,083,319 1,083,319
- 2,533 - - 6,484 27,003
- - - 28,632 - 28,632
- 2,533 - 28,632 1,262,448 1,311,599
33 16,571 - {28.632) {1,246,390) (1,230,793)
- - - - - 471,000
. - - . - (78,315)
- - - - - 392,685
33 16,571 - (28,632) (1,246,390) (838,108)
2,669 23,497 - 68,575 1,295,430 2,217,400
S 2,702 8 40,068 & - 5 39943 & 49,040 5 1,379,292
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Delinquent Tax Revolving Funds (616-626) This group of funds are set aside for the
collection and distribution of delinquent tax funds. The income generated from this fund
provides revenue for the operations within the County.

Workers’ Compensation Insurancg (677) The various funds of the County make a transfer
to this fund that sets aside monies to apply against premiums and claims for employees
who qualify for this benefit. The County General Fund also makes an appropriation to
thts fund.

County Retirement (286) This fund sets aside monies to pay the portion of the County’s
obligations for employee’s retirement. Various funds transfer the appropriate level of
obligation to this fund.

Health Insurance (678) This fund sets aside monies to pay the insurance premiums.
Various funds transfer the appropriate level of obligation to this fund when payments are
made.









TUSCOLA COUNTY

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000
Workers'
Delinquent Compensation
Tax Revolving Insurance

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,533,632 358,789

Investments 3,028,641 -

Taxes receivable 2,245,795 -

Accounts receivable - 6,608

Due from other governmental units 79,621 -

Advances to other funds 1,817,389 -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 9,705,078 365,397
LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
LIABILITIES

Accounts payables 3 44.121 -

Due to other funds 757,261 -

Advances from other funds 1,817,389 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,618,771 -
RETAINED EARNINGS

Reserved for debt retirement 2,986,082 -

Reserved for self-funding 3,000,000 -

Reserved for accrued compensated absences 632,344 -

Unreserved

Undesignated 467,881 365,397

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS 7,086,307 365,397
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
RETAINED EARNINGS b 9,705,078 365,397




y

County

Retirement

Health

Insurance

Total

418,947

26,030

3,337,398
3,028,641
2,245,795
6,608
79,621
1,817,389

418,947

26,030

10,515,452

44,121
757,261
1,817,389

2,618,771

418,947

26,030

2,986,082
3,000,000
632,344

1,278,255

418,947

26,030

7,896,681

418,947

26,030

10,515,452
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Interest earned on laxes
Other revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance premiums
Setlemenis and claims
QOther
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING REVENUE
Interest on investments
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFER
OPERATING TRANSFERS
Operating transfer in
Operating iransfecr out
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS
NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR -
AS RESTATED

RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR

Workers'
Delinquent Compensalion
Tax Revolving Insurance
3 160,108 § 5,000
347,695 -
5,222 28,726
513,025 33,726
; 9,705
; 2,763
1,073 573
1,073 13,041
511,952 20,685
388,896 -
900,343 20,685
507,068 -
(1,407,916) -
(900,848) .
- 20,685
7,086,307 344,712
$ 7,086,307 § 365,397




F]

County

Retirement

Health
Insurance

Total

1,168,077

1,333,185
347,695
33,948

1,168,077

1,714,828

1,168,077

1,177,782
2,763
1,646

1,168,077

1,182,191

532,637

388,896

921,533

507,068
(1,407,916)

(900,848)

418,947

26,030

20,685

7,875,996

418,947

26,030

7,896,681
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Workers'
Delinquent Compensation
Tax Revolving Insurance

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income N 511952 § 20,685
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
10 net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities
(Increase) decrease in current assets

Taxes receivables 170,519 -

Accounts receivable - 786

Due from other governmental units (75,595) -
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities

Account payables (19,098) -

Due to other funds (139,484) -

Due to ether governmental units (11,276) -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 437,018 21,471

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances to other funds 540,957 -
Advances from other funds (488,251) -
Operating transfer in 507,068 -
Operating transfer ont (1,407,916) -

NET CASH (USED) BY NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES {848,142) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Loans receivable 3,636 -

Purchase of investments 824,306 -

Interest received 388,896 -

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,216,338 -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 805,714 21,471
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,727,918 337,318

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 8 2,533,632 § 358,789




County Health
Relirement Insurance Total

$ - 3 - % 532,637

- - 170,519
- 69,745 70,531
- . (75,595)

- (6,242) (25,340)
; (63,503) (202,987)
] - (11,276)

- - 458,489

- - 540,957
. . (488,251)
- - 507,068
- - (1,407,916)

] - {848,142)

- - 3,636
. - 824,306
- - 388,896

- - 1,216,838

- - 827,185

418,947 26,030 2,510,213

3 418947 8 26,030 3% 3,337,358




TUSCOLA COUNTY
ALL DELINQUENT TAX REVOLVING FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Due from other governmental units
Advances to other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payables
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

RETAINED EARNINGS
Reserved for debt retirement
Reserved for self-funding
Reserved for accrued compensated absences
Unreserved
Undesignated

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
RETAINED EARNINGS

1996 1997
Delinquent Delinquent
Tax Revolving Tax Revolving

- 3 354,913

- 108,331
- 2,258

- § 465,502

. 465,502

- 465,502

- § 465,502




ed

19923 1999 2000 Combined
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Revolving
Tax Revolving Tax Revolving Tax Revolving Tax Totals
$ 35300 3 61,238 § 111,319 § 1,970,862 § 2,533,632
- - - 3,028,641 3,028,641
702,902 1,189,861 237,676 7,025 2,245,795
24,740 43,766 - 8,857 79,621
- - - 1,817,389 1,817,389
$ 762,942 $ 1,294,865 3 348,995 § 6,832,774 8§ 9,705,078
3 2290 3 1,478 $ - 3 40,353 § 44,121
- - - 757,261 757,261
403,140 1,072,136 342,113 - 1,817,389
405,430 1,073,614 342,113 797,614 2,618,771
117,764 - - 2,402,316 2,986,082
- - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
- - - 632,344 632,344
239,748 221,251 6,882 - 467,881
357,512 221,251 6,882 6,035,160 7,086,307
3 762,942 § 1,294,865 % 348,995 § 6,832,774 § 9,705,078
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

ALL DELINQUENT TAX REVOLVING FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Interest earned on taxes
Cther revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Other

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE
Interest on investments

INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS
OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating transfer in

Operating transfer out
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS

NET INCOME (LOSS)

RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR -
AS RESTATED

RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR

1996 1997
Delinquent Delinquent
Tax Revolving Tax Revolving
71 3% 18,233
671 114,386
60 4,186
802 136,805
58 222
744 136,583
744 136,583
(507,068) -
(507,068) -
(506,324) 136,583
506,324 328,919
- 3 465,502




A e

1998 1999 2000 Combined
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Revolving
Tax Revolving Tax Revolving Tax Revolving Tax Totals
$ 34531 % 102,962 § 4,159 % 152§ 160,108
127,975 100,275 2,723 1,665 347,695
940 10 - 26 5,222
163,446 203,247 6,882 1,843 513,025
- 39 - 754 1,073
163,446 203,208 6,882 1,089 511,952
- 13,063 - 375,833 388,896
163,446 216,271 6,382 376,922 900,848
- - - 507,068 507,068
- - - (900,848) {1,407,916)
- - - (393,780) (900,848)
163,446 216,271 6,882 (16,858) -
194,066 4,980 - 6,052,018 7,086,307
3 357,512 8 221251 § 6,882 3% 6,035,160 § 7,086,307
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
ALL DELINQUENT TAX REVOLVING FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

1996 1997
Delinquent Delinquent
Tax Revolving Tax Revolving

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income ) 744 % 136,583
Adjusiments to reconcile operating income
1o net cash provided by (used in)
operaling aclivities
{Increase) decrease in current asscts

Taxes receivables 8,333 453,408

Due from other governmental units - 543
Increase {decrease) in current liabilities

Account payables - {2,240)

Due 10 other funds - -

Due 10 other governmental units (2,466) -

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED} BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,611 588,294

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances to other funds - -
Advances [rom other funds - (371,713)
Opcraling transfer in -
Qperating wransfer out (507,068) -

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES (507,068) (371,713)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVYESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans receivable - -
Sale of investments - -
Interest received - -

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (500,457) 216,581

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 500,457 138,332

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 5 - § 354,913




id

L

S

1998 1999 2000 Combined
Delinquens Delinquent Delinquent Revalving
Tax Revolving Tax Revolving Tax Revolving Tax Totals

163,446 § 203,208 % 6,882 % 1,089 % 511,952
872,110 {933,509) (237,676) 7,853 170,519
(24,740) (43,766) - (7,632) (75,595)
2,290 1,478 - {20,626) (19,098)
- - - (139,484) (139,484)
(8,810) - - - {11,276)
1,004,296 (772,589) {230,794) (158,800} 437,018

. - - 540,957 540,957
(1,200,000} 741,349 342,113 - {488,251}

- - - 507,068 507,068
- - - (900,848) (1,407,916}
(1,200,000) 741,349 342,113 147,177 (848,142)

- - - 3,636 1,636

- - - 824,306 824,306

- 13,063 - 375,833 188,896

- 13,063 - 1,203,775 1,216,838

(195,704) {18,177) 111,31% 1,192,152 805,714
231,004 79,415 - 778,710 1,727,918
35300 § 61238 § 111,319 8 1,970,862 S 2,533,632
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Trust Funds

Cemetery Trust Fund (711) This fund was established with the deposits from local
townships in trust for the maintenance of specific plots within cemeteries in each
township. The interest earned is disbursed each year.

Employee Vacation and Sick Time (730) This fund was established by the transfer of
funds from General Fund for the obligation the County has to pay to employees who
qualify for the pay out of vacation and sick time.

Apency Funds

Trust and Agency (701) This fund sets aside monies to be distributed to other units of
government. State monies collected are deposited and withdrawn from this fund.

Health Department Flex Benefit Plan The revenue for this fund is employee contributions
and the expenses are the reimbursement for qualified services.

Library Penal Fines (721) The deposit of penal fines collected by the courts are held in
this fund and disbursed on a quarterly basis to Libraries in the County. The Law Library
of the County also received an annual amount from these collections.







a3




TUSCOLA COUNTY
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Trust Funds
Non- Expendable
Expendable Employee Vacation
Cemetery and Sick Time

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 - 3 -

Investments at fair value 7,029 -

Due from other funds - 28,503
TOTAL ASSETS 3 7,028 § 28,503
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities $ - 3 20,699

Duc to other funds - 7,804

Due to other governmental units - -

Undistributed receipts - -

Undistributed taxes - -

Due to employees - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 28,503
FUND BALANCE

Reserved for cemctery maintenance 6,800 -

Unreserved 229 -
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 7,029 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE 3 7,025 § 28,503




or

B |

Agency Funds
Health Department Library
Trust and Flex Benefit Penal

Agency Plan Fines Total
1,831,713 % 2,876 107,545 1,942,134
- - - 7,029
340,797 - - 369,300
2,172,510 § 2,876 107,545 2,318,463
863,401 § - - 834,100
- - - 7,804
608,045 - - 608,045
6,714 - 107,545 114,259
694,350 - - 694,350
- 2,876 - 2,876
2,172,510 2,876 107,545 2,311,434
- - - 6,800
- - - 229
- - - 7,029
2,172,510 § 2,876 107,545 2,318,463
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSET AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Balance Balance
TRUST AND AGENCY Jonuary 1, 2000 Addilions Reductions December 3], 2000
ASSETS
Cosh and cash equjvalents S 1,193,078 § 15,724,263 5 15085628 S 1,831,713
Due from other funds 1.124,565% 340,797 I.124,565 340,797
TOTAL ASSETS 5 2317643 5 16065060 5 16210193 § 2,172,510
LIABILITIES
Acerncd liabililics s 477914 5 3377810 8 2992443 8§ 863,401
Due to other governmental units 804,085 5,262,602 5,458,642 608,045
Undistributed receipts 3,324 3,390 - 6,714
Undistributed toxes 1,032,260 7,421,198 7,759,108 694,350
TOTAL LIABILITIES s 2317643 5 16065060 S 16210193 % Zil TZISIU
NEALTH DEPARTMENT FLEX BENEFIT FLAN
ASSETS
Investiments ol narket M 3,815 S - 5 939 § 2,876
LIABILITIES
Due lo epployees ) 3815 § - 3 939 S 2.876
LIBRARY PENAL FINES
ASSETS
Cnsh and cash equivalents s 131,914 $ 544,264 § 568,633 S 107,545
LIABILITIES
Undigtribuled receipls 3 131,014 § 544,264 5 568633 3 107,54%
TOTAL - ALL AGERCY FUNDS
ASBSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents 5 1,324,992 § 16,268,527 § 15,654,261 § 1,939,258
Investments sl market value 3,815 - 93 2876
Drac from other funds 1,124,56% 340,797 1,124.565 340,797
TOTAL ASSETS 35 2483372 5§ 16609224 § 16,779,765 S 2,282,931
LIABILITIES
Accrued linbilities s 477,974 § IATIBI0 § 2992443 § 863,401
Duc to other govammental tnils E04,085 5,262,602 5,458,642 08,045
Undistributed receipts 135,238 547,654 568,633 114,259
Undi=tributed x collections 1032260 7,421,198 7,759,108 694,350
Due to employces 3.B15 - 919 2,876
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 2453372 0§ 14609324 § 16,779,765 S 2,282 931
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE

L

DECEMBER 31, 2000
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land $ 590,810
: Buildings and improvements 9,016,243
‘ Equipment 2,835,610
: Vehicles 1,064,731
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 13,507,394

SOURCE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General County Government $ 8,545,728
State and Federal Grants 173,408
Building Authority Bonds 4,788,258
TOTAL $ 13,507,394
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

DECEMBER 31, 2000
Buildings and
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY Land Improvements Equipment Vehicles Total
General Government % 590,810 $ 2,633,578 $ 1,974,934 ) 125,103 § 5324425
Public Safety - 3,073,617 445,181 549,353 4,068,151
Health and Weilarc - 3,155,455 335,763 377,275 3,868,493
Recreation and Culture - 153,593 79,732 13,000 246,125
TOTAL % 590,810 $ 9016243 $ 2835610 $ 1,064,731 $ 13,507,394




General Government
Public Safety
Health and Wellare

Rccrealion and Culture

TOTAL

TUSCOLA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Balance Balance
January 1, 2000 Additions Deletions December 31, 2000
5 4,238,318 s 1,086,107 % ) 5,324,425
2,489,392 1,578,759 4,068,151
3,575,703 292,790 3,868,493
246,325 - 246,325
3 10,549,738 3 2,957,656 by b 13,507,394
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP
DECEMBER 31, 2000

AMOUNTS AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED FOR RETIREMENT OF GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT

SEWER SYSTEM GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Amount available in the Debl Serviee Fund
Amount to be provided by Townships and Villages

TOTAL

BUILDING AUTHORITY BONDS
Amount nvailable in the Debt service Fund
Amount to be provided by lease payments

TOTAL
CAPITAL LEASES
Amount 10 be provided by Health Department lease payments
Amount 1o be provided by County
TOTAL
ACCRUED LEAVE
Amount 1o be provided by Health Depariment
Amount 1o be provided by County

TOTAL

TOTAL AMOUNTS AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED FCR

RETIREMENT OF GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT PAYABLE

SEWER SYSTEM GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Akron-Fairgrove Sewage Disposal System Bondss
Caro Arca Sanitary Sewer System
Muoyville Storm Scawer System
Richville Storm Sewer System

TOTAL SEWER SYSTEM GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
BUILDING AUTHORITY BONDS
Family Indcpendence Agency building
Health Depariment Building
Dispalch Building and cquipment
State Police Post
TOTAL BUILDING AUTHORITY BONDS
CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE
ACCRUED LEAVE LIABILITY

TOTAL GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT PAYABLE

9f-

5 20,657
3,906,343

3,927,000

112,818
3,232,182
3,345,000

64,365

64,365

71,314
632,344

703,658

5 8,040,023

$ 130,000
1,395,000
1,302,000
1,100,000

3,927,000

200,000
80,000
1,450,000
1,615,000

3,345,000

64,365

703,658

$ 8,040,023
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
DRAIN COMMISSION DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES

AND ACCOUNT GROUP
DECEMBER 31, 2000
Debt Capital
Service Project
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 544314 § 2,125,311
Investmenis 855,100 3,409,326
Special assessments receivable 10,909,771 868,627
Due from other component units - -
Due from other governmental units - 5,700
Amount available for retirement of
general long term debt
Amount to be provided for relirement
of general long term debt - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,309,185 § 6,408,904
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Account payable $ - & 238072
Due to other component units - 400,783
Deferred revenue 10,909,771 992377
Drain bond payable - -
Drain notes payable - -
Advance from primary government - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,909,771 1,631,232
FUND EQUITY
Fund balance
Reserved for debt service 1,399,414 -
Reserved for drain projects - 4,777,732
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,399,414 4,777,732

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY § 12,309,185 § 6,408,964




td

L. ..

"
-

Trust and Account
Agency Group
General
Revolving Long-Term
Prain Debt Totals
3 214841 3 - 2,884,466
- - 4,264,426
- - 11,778,398
400,783 - 400,783
- - 5,700
1,399,414 1,399,414
- 11,626,284 11,626,284
g 615,624 $§ 13,025,698 32,359,471
hY 5624 3% - 243,696
- - 400,783
- - 11,902,148
- 11,588,280 11,588,280
- 1,437,418 1,437,418
610,000 - 610,000
615,624 13,025,698 26,182,325
- - 1,399,414
- - 4,771,732
- - 6,177,146
$ 615,624 § 13,025,698 32,359,471
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TUSCOLA COUNTY

DRAIN COMMISSION DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - ALL FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 131, 2000

REVENUES
Taxes
Inlergovernmental
Federal
Siale

Interest and rents
Other

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
Public Works
Capital oullay
Debt service
Principal
Inlerest and charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond proceeds

Nole proceeds

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Debt Capital

Service Projecl Tolal
5 1,583,085 3 670,273 § 2,258,358
- 335,430 335,430
- 102,674 102,674
45,018 256,550 301,568
- 24,484 24,484
1,633,103 1,389,411 3,022,514
860 - 860
- 5,170,245 5,170,245
550,000 910,368 1,460,368
451,926 79,424 531,350
1,002,786 6,160,037 7,162,823
630,317 {4,770,626) (4,140309)
- 3,205,000 3,205,000
- 567,000 567,000
148,834 - 148,834
- (148,834) {148,834)
148,834 3,623,166 3,772,000
779,151 (1,147,460) (368,309)
620,263 5,925,192 6,545,455
s 1,399,414 § 4,771,732 8 6,177,146
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TUSCOLA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA GRANTOR'S AWARDS
GRANTOR PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDED
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed-through Michigan Family Independence Agency:
Title 1V-D Child Support Enforcement Program
Prosccuting Attomey Coperative Reimbursement Program 93.560 N/A s 50,750
Title 1¥-D Incentive Program 93.563 N/A 1.449
TOTAL U.S. DEFPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMARN SERVICES 52,199
U.5. FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
Passed-through Michigan Department of State Police:
Public Assistance Grant {Major Program) 83.549 N/A 300,710
Hazard Mhigation Grant §3.548 N/A 34,720
TOTAL U.S. FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 335.430
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Office of Community Health
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 N/a 43912
Office of Community Oricnted Policing Services
Public Safety and Community Policing Gram (C.O.P.8, AHEAD) 16,726 NA 48,742
Olfice of Juslice
State Criminal Alien Assislance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 N/A 10,826
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 103,480
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed-through Michigan Jobs Cormmission:
Economic Development Job Training Grant 14,228 N.A 260
Passed-through Michizan State Housing Development Authority:
Michigan Communily Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Housing Program 14.235 N/A 104,223
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 105,183
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 596,292

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Tuscola County and is presented

on the accrual basis of accounting.  The informatien in this schedule is presented in accordance with Lhe requirements of OMB

Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Thercfore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial statements

NOTE2 RECONCILIATION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance reflects total federal awards ol $1,983,910.
The Statement includes federal funds received by the Tuscola County Health Department and the Tuscela County Road Commission
ol$511,731 and $875,887, respectively. These federal awards were excluded from the accompanying schedule ol expenditures of

Tederal awards because each unit was audited by other audilors and a separate report wvas issted by those other auditors.
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A MEWBER OF ASSQCIATES INC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS

March 12, 2001

Board of Commissioners
County of Tuscola
Tuscola, Michigan

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Tuscola County, Michigan, as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2000, and have issued our report thereon dated March 13, 2000.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compitroller General of the United States. We did not audit the financial statements of the Tuscola
County Health Department, which represents 8% of total assets and 11% of total revenues of the
Special Revenue Funds and we did not audit the financial statements of the Tuscola County Road
Commission, which represents 15% of total assets and 79% of total revenues of the Discretely
Presented Component Units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
Tuscola County Health Department and the Tuscola County Road Commission, is based on the
reports of other auditors.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tuscola County’s general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain
immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of Tuscola Connty
in a separate letter dated March 12, 2001.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Tuscola County’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal
control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might
be material weaknesses.

3800 Gratiot * P.O. Box 2025 » Saginaw. MI 48605 + Phone (989) 799-9580 = FAX (989) 795-0227
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts
that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters
involving the internal contro!l over financial reporting that we have reported to management of
Tuscola County in a separate letter dated March 12, 2001.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Finance Committee, management,
Board of Commissioners, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@mﬂ{,{aﬁ, Pe.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

March 12, 2001

Board of Commissioners
County of Tuscola
Tuscola, Michigan

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Tuscola County, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the US. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2000.
Tuscola Connty’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of
Tuscola County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Tuscola Connty’s
compliance based on our audit.

Tuscola County’s general purpose financial statements include the operations of the Tuscola County
Health Department and the Tuscola County Road Commission, which received $511,731 and
$875,887, respectively, in federal awards which are not included in the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards for the year ended December 31, 2000. Our audit, described below, did not include
the operations of the Tuscola County Health Department or the Tuscola County Road Commission
because the Tuscola County Health Department and Tuscola County Road Commission engaged
other auditors to perform audits in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Tuscola County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Tuscola County’s compliance with
those requirements.

5800 Gration » P.O. Box 2025 « Saginaw, MI 48605 » Phone (989) 759-9380 « FAX (989) 799-0227
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In our opinion, Tuscela County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Tuscola County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Twscola
County’s intemmal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Tuscola County Health Department, which
represents 8% of total assets and 11% of total revenues of the Special Revenue Funds and we did not
audit the financial statements of the Tuscola County Road Commission, which represents 15% of
total assets and 79% of total revenues of the Discretely Presented Component Units. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Tuscola County Health Department and the
Tuscola County Road Commission, is based on the reports of other auditors.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the finance committee, management,
Board of Commissioners and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@@M-(,,-Lm, Pe.
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TUSCOLA COUNTY, MICHIGAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified on general purpose
Sfinancial statements

Internal controls over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _ no
Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Intemal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X __no
Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section 510(a)? yes X _ no

Identification of Major Programs

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

83.544 Public Assistance Grant
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Dollar threshold used 10 distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $300.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.

SECTION IHI - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings or questioned costs for the current year.

Prior Year Findings

There were no findings or questioned costs for the prior year.
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